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Control Number: 47113 

Item Number: 1 

Addendum StartPage: 0 



Application for Sale, Transfer, or Merger of a Retail Public Utility 
Pursuant to Chapter 13.251 of the Texas Water Code 

1 

Docket Number: 4 7 1 1 3 
(this number will be assigned by the Public Utility Commission after your application is filed) 

7 copies of the application, including the original, along with one Copy of the portable electronic storage 
medium (such as CD or DVD) containing the GIS data shall be filed with 

01 
r-- 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 	 vc 
"T) 	3:411  
F 	 171  Attention: Filing Clerk 
Er- 

1701 N. Congress Avenue 	 C1-.4 
c-0-4 

P.O. Box 13326 	 rs 2.• 
rri Austin, Texas 78711-3326 	 2cz 
C3 § 

No later than seven days after filing the application for the boundary change, provide a coppof ditth paper 
map and a portable electronic storage medium (such as CD, flash drive or DVD) containinecomplete and 

identical data to the portable electronic storage medium submitted above to 

Texas Natural Resources Information System 
1700 N. Congress Ave, Room B40 

Austin, Texas 78701 

TABLE OF CONTENTS' 
Part A — General Information 	  
Part B — Current Service Provider or Seller Information 	  
Part C — Purchaser or Transferee Information 	  
Part D — Historicial Financial Information 	  
Part E — Projected Information 	  
Part F — Public Water System Information 	 
Part G — Oaths and Notices 	  
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? 

and to: 

Obtain a CCN for the transferee (purchaser) — indicate if purchaser will take the seller's CCN 

Amend the transferee's CCN No.: 

Merge or consolidate public utilities 

Cancel CCN of the transferor (seller) 

*CN# * (PRIOR TCEQ ID numbers) *RN# 

411305_ 	• Transfer of 	All X Portion of the X Certificated water service area —CCN No.: 
Certificated sewer service area — CCN No.: 

If only a portion of a system or certificated service area is affected by this transaction, please specify the areas 

or subdivision involved: 

Oart A — General,Information -  

1. Proposed 	action of application (check all the boxes that apply): 
Sale of 	All 	Portion 	of the 
Acquisition 
Lease/Rental 

X 

Water system(s) under CCN No.: 
Sewer system(s) under CCN No.: " 

, 
' 

3. 	For the current CCN holder or service provider please indicate: 

A. Name. BIcland Wai*r .Subply,bqrpiAtiOn 

(972) 771-637a  

C. Contact person. Please provide information about the person to be contacted regarding this 

application. Indicate if this person is the owner, operator, engineer, attorney or accountant. 

Title: 

Telephone: (AC) 

r. 	• .41 

Heath-McGee' Name: 

Address: PO Bok 215;  '„:Fate'3X41:75132 

PO Bdk215 , Eate,-3X15132 

B. Utility  Name (if different than above): 
Address: (972)77..11637 

• 

Telephone: (AC) 

2 

2. Proposed effective date of this transaction:110/1/2017 
(Must be at least 120 days after proper notice is provided) 

'art B - Currentgivice4roviar or Séller6formatio.9 
Questions 3 through 5 apply to the transferor (current service provider or seller) 

   

(Individual, Corporation or Other Legal Entity) 

         

tho is a(n):of 
	

Individual 
	

Corporation 
	

WSC 
	

HOA or POA Other 
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Date 

Questions 6 through 16 refer to the transferee or purchaser. 

6. 	For the person or entity acquiring the facilities and/or CCN: 

Applicant: city of Rpthe City. 

v -638? 
	ii4oysp 0.*01;7eI89,' _ 	 4:1  

Utility Name: 	 

Utility Address: 

Fax: Telephone (AC): 67'27)-.63612250 (P7n) Email: 

 

(lf different than above) 

     

Fax: 

 

Email: 

 

3 

     

4. 	About the last rate increase for the system or facilities being 

transferred: 

A. What was the effective date of the last rate 

increase? 

B. Was notice of this increase provided to the Public Utility Commission of Texas (commission or PUC) 

or 	a predecessor regulatory authority? 
No 	Yes- Application/Docket Number: 

5. 	Please provide a list of all customers affected by this transaction who have deposits held by the transferor 

or seller utility, if any, and include the following information (attach additional sheets if necessary): 

Name and Address of Utility Customer Date of 

Deposit 

Amount of 

Deposit 

Amount of Unpaid 

Interest on Deposit 
_ 	, 	-------. ,. 	 - 	• , -,, -- 

- - „ —,....--.1-5.".. - 	. 	_ ' ! 4 
' ‘fri-----s 	— - 	• 	' ' ' 	-e. . . 1 , 	. — ..J 

. 
-..... 	..,.. 

— — - -. 	 . 

..- 

,. 
. 	 . .-, 	. 	......., -.., 

,. 	 ._ - 
, 	_ 	 , 

-... 

. -- 

- , . 	- -. 

-- 

- ,- 

----- 

, 

I 
. 

,- 	, ____ 	_ 	, 	,• •. _ 
i 	'' 	 - . , - 	, . ,. 	. 

- 
_ 

„...... _ 	. 	. 	- - - --- — 
.., - 	- •- 	- 	, 

---- 	.r , • 	— .  
„. 

s 6,t  
- • - 

-.....' 

' --- — - 	, 
1 ... 	A,.  

•- ; 	... 	- 
J 

	

. 	. 

- 

.. 

-- r 

Part C — Purchwr or Transfereeinforniaiion' 

(Individual, Corporation, or Other Legal Entity) 

'ar 

CCN Numbers held prior to the filing of this application: 

 

b,0-3 21)9'58\ /d,Z  

7. 	Check the appropriate box and provide information regarding the legal status of the transferee 
applicant: 

Individual 

Home or Property Owners Association 

Partnership; attach copy of partnership agreement 

orporation; provide charter number as recorded with the Office of the Secretary of State for 

Texas: 

Non-profit, member owned, member-controlled Cooperative Corporation (Article 1434(a) 
Water Sewer Service Corporation); provide charter number: 
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4 Municipally-owned utility 

Disirict (MUD, SUD, WCID, etc.) 

County 

Other (please explain): 

8. If the applicant is an Individual or sole proprietorship, provide the following information. If not, skip to 

the next auestion. 

Name : -.. 6 	, 	... 	
.- • 	T 

	

_.......„......... 	. 
.. 	. 	

__, _ 	_  Email ..,, 	• ....' 	6 ____ j  

Address - , 

Telephone (AC): . 	- . 	.., 	Fax (AC):  

9. If the applicant is other than an Individual, provide the following information regarding the officers or 

partners of the legal entity applying for the transfer. You must complete either question 8 or question 

9, whichever applies to the transferee applicant. 

•Name: 
- 	• 	- 

Charles , Houk Telephone (AC): S6,25t), 	, 

Address: 

Position: ca-imeirkevept 	- 	' Ownership % (if applicable): 67.65‘ 

•Name: Telephone (AC): 

Address: 
r- 

Position: Miyor Ownership % (if applicable): 

•Name: Br,iiEe, 6db lbw Telephone (AC): 

Address: 1?,(ijiox:68 RoYse-,City TX .7.518-6" 

Position: Council Member Ownership % (if applicable): 0.00%; 

r 	 -- 	a - 
•Name: 	Tom Crowley,  Telephone (AC): (972)6362250... 

Address: 
• • 

Position: ,Ctuna:Merrib'S.r,;: Ownership % (if applicable): 6-6:98/0 

•Name: — Telephone (AC): *(972).6*22e0 

Address: ETOZ"--"638 4  lAgy;e:gliiPi.(2.  1861 
- 

Position: ._ci_ember• „ Ownership % (if applicable): 0.00%, 

•Name: 'Mati,Wheailey; 	_ Telephone (AC): 

Address: "ff0Box:p3,e'Rbyke city TX 

Position: 'COundil Met 	 - Ownership % (if applicable): 

- 	Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary — 

igr Important: • If the applicant is a for-profit corporation, please provide a copy of the corporation's 

"Certification of Account Status" from the State Comptroller Office. This "Certification of 

Account Status" can be obtained from: 
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Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
	

5 
P. O. Box 13528, Capitol Station 

Austin, Texas 78711 

1-800-252-5555 

• If the applicant is an Article 1434a water supply or sewer service corporation or other non-

profit corporation, please provide a copy of the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws. 

10. Contact person. Please provide information about the person to be contacted regarding this 

application. Indicate if this person is the owner, operator, engineer, attorney or accountant. 

Name* C' arl'Alabrook  
. 	. 	, 	. 

Title: - 	- 
Cii);, Mes,IN.a.t.  

Address: 13613bx 4 -#Oy.§e:atyipg 	. 	 . Telephone (AC): 	(672,630:2'2766  

Fax # .  Email - 	
. 

. 	• Relationship to the applicant: 	_ 	 . 	 . 	_ 	- 	_ 	, 

IF THERE ARE MORE THAN TWO PARTIES INVOLVED IN THIS TRANSACTION, PLEASE ATTACH SHEETS 
PROVIDING THE INFORMATION REQUIRED IN QUESTION 6 
THROUGH QUESTION 10 FOR EACH PARTY 

11. Please respond to each of the following questions. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

A. Describe the experience and qualifications of the applicant to provide adequate utility service to the 

requested area 

1The Citiie a régidpal water/wasieWater Service proyider with adequate capacities tò SerVe additional 
portions of trle rpgiOn. It will be ac'quiring facilities and serviae paRacity compliant with TCaregulations. 

B. Has the applicant acquiring the CCN or facilities or an affiliated interest of the applicant been under 
enforcement action by the PUC, TCEQ, Texas Department of Health (TDH), the Office of the Attorney 

General (OAG) or the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in the past for noncompliance with 

rules, orders or State Statutes? 	Yes X No 

If yes, please attach copies of any correspondence with these regulatory agencies concerning these 
enforcement actions and describe any actions and efforts to comply with those requirements. Attach 

additional sheets if needed. 

C. Describe the source and availability of funds required to make the planned or required improvements, 

if any, to meet minimum requirements of the TCEQ and PUC and ensure continuous and adequate 
service. 

NOrnprqvernents;arep_lanned dr-required. Capital will come from internal capitaliand full•fajth,  
and7Credit'ohliemunicipality:: • 
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D. Describe the anticipated impact of this transaction on the quality of utility service and explain any 	6 
anticipated changes in the quality of service. 

AcqUired facilitiet will become part of a larger municipally ownedregionarseNice proyider. As 
'aebas•are, annexed; customers wili.be  able to.elect the manageMent of the service provider. 

, 

E. How will the transaction serve the public interest? 
- 

Curferit stat9 laykkhae Provisions fOr thuniCipalitiee to Serve draaS that they.  annex:, Thie voliantary 
ti-ansaction will 0:lieve'thafRurpose*ithCtit litiggtion a.)515ense andPclierciption of seryibe,for,customers,- 

12. Please describe the nature of the proposed transaction: 

Sale otthe'assets andiransferbf‘the'per:tificated -service'.afekfed'm lEiiack!ang W5C, toIhe' 

13. If the transferee applicant is an Investor Ownêd Utility (IOU) and will be under the rate jurisdiction of 

the PUC, please provide the following information. Water supply or sewer service corporations and 
political subdivisions of the state should mark this section N/A: 

A. • Total Purchase Price: 7 

• Total Original Cost (as recorded on books of seller or merging entity): 

• Accumulated Depreciation as of the proposed effective date of the 
transaction: 

• Contributions in Aid of Construction: 

- Specific surcharges approved by TCEQ or 

PUC: 

- Revenues from explicit customer 

agreements: 

- 

- Developer Contributions (please explain): 

- Other Contributions (please explain): 

Total Contributions in Aid of Construction 

• Net Book Value: 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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If the Original Cost or any of the above items has been established in a rate case proceeding 	7 
by the PUC, the liNC or the TCEQ, please provide the Application/Docket Number and date: 

Application/Docket Number: 	 Date: 

If the applicant is not under the rate jurisdiction of the TCEQ, only the purchase price and 

information related to Contributions in Aid of Construction is required. 

Please provide any other information concerning the nature of the transaction you believe 
should be given consideration if not explained elsewhere in the application. 

[attach additional sheet(s) if necessary]: 

, 	. 
See qgreements. 

-4- 

C. 	 Complete the following proposed entries listed below as shown in books of purchasing (or 

surviving) company. Additional entries may be made; the following are suggested only, and 
not intended to pose descriptive limitations.  

Utility Plant in Service: 

Plant Acquisition Adjustment: 

	

Extraordinary Loss on Purchase: 	  

	

Accumulated Depreciation of Plant: 	  

	

Cash: 	  

	

Notes Payable: 	  

Mortgage Payable:  

Others (please list): 

As the purchaser, l understand that it is my responsibility in any future rate proceeding to 
provide written evidence and support for the original cost and installation date of all facilities 
used and useful for providing utility service. 

Purchasers Initials: 	 Date: 

 

    

14. 	Please indicate the proposed effect of this transaction on the rates to be charged to the affected 
customers: 

II the customers will be charged the same rates as they were charged before the transaction. 

ome 	II customers will be charged different rates than they were charged before the 
ransaction. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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If rates are changing, please explain: 
_ 	 . 	. 

Citywill ultirnatelyichange the fates under itš authority whidh does not reduire,PUC 
'approval: Applicant- is, riot ari-  IQU: 

F7Applicant is an IOU and intends to file with the commission or municipal regulatory authority an 

application to change rates of some/all of its customers as a result of this transaction. If so, please explain: 

Other. Please explain: 

15. List all neighboring water and /or sewer utilities, cities, and political subdivisions providing the same 

service within two (2) miles of area affected by this proposed transaction. This information should be 

available from the water utility database (WUD) or Applicant's licensed water operator. 

BHP:Vaer-Ogi5Ply COrporatiorr 10064 
Cash SyD10824 
city of Fate i2889 
Parker'Creek- MUD 13071 

16. Financial, Managerial and Technical information for the acquiring entity. 

8 
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Yes No. If yes, please explain: B. Is there a moratorium on new connections? 

• ..01111110411%. 

	 rt4::=- TCE0611511e8NatOrl.:6PS-6)Veit-SyserrYlfifOir*io!.t',,  

Please answer questions 17 through 22 on a different sheet for each physically Distinct system being 
transferred or acquired. 

17. A. For Water Systems. TCEQ Public Water System Identification Number: 

Date of last inspection: 	  

B. 	For Wastewater Systems: 

9 

-TCEQ Discharge Permit Number: 	W Q 	•  

-Name of Permitee: 	  
-Date of application to transfer Discharge Permit submitted: 
-Date of application to transfer Discharge Permit approved by TCEQ: 

18. A. Are any improvements required to meet TCEQ or PUC 
standards? 

 

Yes 

 

No. If yes, please explain: 

     

C. Provide details of each required major capital improvement to correct the deficiencies and meet the 
TCEO or PUC standards attach additional sheets if necessar : 
Description of the Required Improvement ,. 	. Schedule to Complete Estimated Cost  

NliTtre, , _ 	 - 	, . ....... .. i: ., 	. 
Pc". --_, _r, _,... 	., 

-'`, 
 

—47: 	— 	— 
—.---- - ' 

. 	---- 

. 	„.„. _____ __ ,,, 	, , 	 ,r,  
.4 	A 

•—•—t.... - 	— 
I. . 	- s.r. 

19. Does the system being transferred operate within the city limits of a municipality or within district 
boundaries? X Yes 	No 

If yes, indicate the number of customers within the city limits or district boundaries: 
0 	Water 	Sewer 

Attach copy of franchise agreement or consent letter from the city or district. 

PUCT Sale Merger Transfer (Previous TCEQ Form 10516) 
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20. Do you currently purchase water or sewer treatmen

r

ilacity from  another source? 
	Water 	Sewer 	Purchased on a 	Regular 	Seasonal 

 

Yes 

 

No 

    

Yes 	No 	1 0 
Emergency Basis 

• Source: 
••••••,, 
	 - % of total supply: :01,0D6/0: 

21. 	List the number of existing connections to be effected by this transaction. 
Water Sewer .. 

-Non Metered 
- 

. 	• -2"meter -Residential Connection _ 	• . . ._ 
1 -5/8" or 3/4" meter - ", .., -3 ti meter -Commercial Co  nnection . . 	_ 
i ----, -1" meter ' 	. 	. 	i -4" meter -Industrial Connection - _ 	_ 	. 	. 

-1 1/2 meter " 1' 	-'•, '''` 
. 	_.„ -Other -Other 

Total Sewer Connections 
- _ 

Total Water Connections: 
-----,, 	. 

• ' o 

20. Has the system reached 85% of its capacity based on TCEQ's minimum requirements? 
If yes, please explain what steps are being taken to address the capacity issues: 

23. List the name, class, and license number of the operator(s) that will be responsible for the system: 

Name Class License# 
WD0007518  

baiiii:LoP;117(tr — . 	_ _ . .... 'yviniTCOli;-ctio-n7;e7ii1COIL_. 	- riiiil ii6‘ _ 
Jpship.  q.White ,' 1 C", 	- 	- 	

- Wri 600775i  

'SOsi-iuS kni 

	

7tli`e' ' 	- ....... 	_.,... 
r - • 
— 

_. 
:- 	, - Mr*T-1.- --...

O 
 

-A 	l vV'pojection 	ppr4t6r11, 	_  yVW00381,4 "5„ --.--' 

_ .._ ........ 
Chl-j§t-ophersyy.ypg@fill _ -, C' 

" 	. WD00129o4'  

24. Attach the following maps with each copy of the application: 
a. One small scale map clearly showing affected service area with enough detail to accurately locate the 

area if the application is for the transfer of all or a portion of a CCN. 
b. One large scale map showing the proposed service area boundaries being sold, transferred, or merged 

and, if available, the existing and proposed facilities. Color coding should be used to differentiate 
existing from proposed facilities. Facilities and service area boundaries should be shown with such 
exactness that they can be located on the ground. If transferring area not currently in a CCN or a portion 
of an existing CCN area please attach the following hard copy maps with each copy of the application: 

1. A general location map delineating the proposed service area with enough detail to 
accurately locate the proposed area within the county. 

2. A map showing only the proposed area by: 
i. 	metes and bounds survey certified by a licensed state or registered professional land 

surveyor; or 
ii..projectable digital data with metadata (proposed areas should be in a single record 

and clearly labeled, data disk should be included); or 
iii. following verifiable natural and man-made landmarks, or 
iv. a copy of recorded plat map with metes and bounds. 

3. 	A written description of the proposed service area. 
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„ 
Parpt.6-10aths'2an"dONotices. ,. - — 

OATH FOR SELLER OR FORMER SERVICE PROVIDER 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

,----, 	 -,--- 	,r---- .---- 45'"" 
, . 	.„ —. ' .7a —  .. .Z . 1 , being duly sworn, file this application for 

sale, lease, rental or merger or consolidation as 

(indicate relationship to applicant) that is, owner, member of partnership, title as officer of corporation, or other authorized 
representative of applicant); that, in such capacity, I am qualified and authorized to file and verify such application, am personally 
familiar with the documents filed with this application, and have complied with all the requirements contained in the application; 
and, that all such statements made and matters set forth therein with respect to applicant are true and correct. Statements about 

other parties are made on information and belief. I further state that the application is made in good faith and that this application 
does not duplicate any filing presently before the Commission. 

I further state that I have provided to the purchaser or transferee a written disclosure statement about anv contributed property as  
required under Section 13.301(1) and copies of any outstanding Orders of the Texas Commission on-Environmental Quality, the  
Public Utility Commission of Texas, or Attorney General and have also complied with the notice requirements in Section 13.301(k) of 

the Texas Water Code.  

AFFIANT 
(Utility's Authorized Representative) 

If the Affiant to this form is any person other than the sole owner, partner, officer of the Applicant, or its attorney, a properly 
verified Power of Attorney must be enclosed. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, this 
day L. 	--- 	of 	 1 , 	20  	

SEAL 

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE 
STATE OF TEXAS 

PRINT OR TYPE NAME OF NOTARY 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

One copy of this page must be submitted for each utility involved in this transaction. 
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1 2 

OATH FOR PURCHASER OR ACQUIRING ENTITY 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

417.1 

I, 	 , being duly sworn, file this application for 

sale, lease, rental or merger or consolidation as 

(indicate relationship to applicant) that is, owner, member of partnership, title as officer of corporation, or other authorized 

representative of applicant); that, in such capacity, I am qualified and authorized to file and verify such application, am 
personally familiar with the documents filed with this application, and have complied with all the requirements contained in 
the application; and, that all such statements made and matters set forth therein with respect to applicant are true and 
correct. Statements about other parties are made on information and belief. I further state that the application is made in 
good faith and that this application does not duplicate any filing presently before the Commission. 

I am also authorized and do agree to be bound by and comply with any outstanding orders of the Texas Commission on  
Environmental Quality, the Public Utility Commission of Texas or the Attorney General which have been issued to the system  
or facilities being acquired and recognize that I will be subject to administrative penalties or other enforcement actions if I  

do not comply.  

AFFIANT 
(Utility's Authorized Representative) 

If the Affiant to this form is any person other than the sole owner, partner, officer of the Applicant, or its attorney, a properly verified 
Power of Attorney must be enclosed. 

Applicant represents that all other parties to this transaction have been furnished copies of this completed application. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, this 
day 1712  of 	 , 20 17-1  . 

SEAL 

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE 
STATE OF TEXAS 

PRINT OR TYPE NAME OF NOTARY 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

One copy of this page must be submitted for each utility involved in this transaction. 
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1 3 

FORM A 	 Docket No..  

Notice to Current Customers, Neighboring Systems and Cities 

Blackland Wate Supply Corporation 

(Seller's or Transferor's Name) 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO SELL FACILITIES AND TRANSFER CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND 

NECESSITY (CCN) NO 	 11305 	 TO City of Royse City 

(Purchaser's or Transferee's Name) 

IN 	Rockwall 	 COUNTY, TEXAS 

To: 

 

Date Notice Mailed 	 , 20 

 

 

(Name of Customer, Neighboring System or City) 

    

(Address) 

City 
	

State 	 Zip 

Blackla'nd Watei:  SuPPly Cor'POiation 
	

PO BOx 215 . 	 Fate/TX/75132 

Sellers or Transferors Name 
	

Address 	 City/State/Zip Code 

has submitted an application with the Public Utility Commission of Texas to sell facilities and transfer _ 
water or sewer (please select) CCN No. 	 11305 	 in Rockwall [County Name] 

County to: 

dity of goise_dity 
	

i50 iiO)'t 08 	 koyse,ditiffk75189 

Purchasers or Transferee's Name 
	

Address 	 City/State/Zip Code 

The sale is scheduled to take place as approved by the Commission (V.T.C.A., Water Code §13.301). The transaction and the transfer of 

the CCN include the following subdivision(s): 

The area subject to this transaction is located approximately 	 3 	 miles 	south 	  [direction] of 

downtown 	Royse City 	,[City or Town] Texas, and is generally  bounded on the north by 

FM 548 and Crenshaw Road 	 ;on the east by 	Crenshaw Road 

;on the south by 	Parker Creek 

 

;and on the west by 	FM 548 and Parker Creek 

      

The total area being requestad includes approximately 	 90 	acres and serves 	0 	 current customers. 

This transaction will have the following effect on the current customer's rates and services: 

 

Affected persons may file written protests and/or request a public hearing within 30 days of this notice. 

To request a hearing, you must: 

(1) state your name, mailing address and daytime telephone number; 

(2) state the applicant's name, application number or another recognizable reference to this application; 

(3) include the statement "l/we request a public hearine; 

(4) write a brief description of how you, the persons you represent, or the public interest would be 

adversely affected by the proposed transaction and transfer of the CCN; and 

(5) state your proposed adjustment to the application or CCN which would satisfy your concerns and 

cause you to withdraw your request for a hearing. 
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1 4 
Only those persons who submit a written request to be notified of a hearing will r'eceive notice if a hearing is scheduled. The 

Commission Will issue the CCN requested in the referenced application unless a hearing is scheduled to consider the transaction. lf no 

protests or requests for hearing are filed during the comment period, the Commission may issue the CCN 30 days after publication of 

this notice. 	I 

Persons who wish to protest or request a hearing on this application should write the: 

Filing Clerk 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 

1701 North Congress Avenue 

P.O. Box 13326 

Austin, Texas 78711-3326 

Se desea informacion en Espanol, puede Ilamar al 
1-888-782-8477 

Utility Representative 

Utility Name 
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1 5 

FORM B 	 Docket No. 

Notice to Current Customers, Neighboring Systems, Landowner and Cities 

 	NOTICE OF INTENT TO SELL FACILITIES TO 

(Sellers or Transferors Name) 

AND FOR 

(Purchasers or Transferee's Name) - 	 Purchasers or Transferee's Name) 

TO OBTAIN OR AMEND A CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY (CCN) IN 
" COUNTY, TEXAS - 

To: 	 Date Notice Mailed 

 

, 20 

 

(Name of Customer, Neighboring System, Landowner or City) 

    

(Address) 

• 
City 	 State 	Zip 

Sellers or Transferors Name 
	

Address 
	

City/State/Zip Code 

has submitted an application with the Public Utility Commission of Texas to sell water or sewer (please 

select) Facilities in 	 -777, 	[County Name] County to: 

Purchasers or Transferee's Name 
	

Address 	 City/State/Zip Code 

The transferee has also requested to obtain/amend a CCN in this application. The sale is scheduled to take place as approved by the 

Commission (Texas Water Code §13.301). The transaction and the proposed service area include the following subdivision(s): 

The area subject to this transaction is located approximately   miles   [direction] of __... _ .._. _ .._..  
downtown 	? 	,[City or Town] Texas, and is generally  bounded on the north by .. 	_ . „.... _ 

' ;on the east by  
, 

;on the south by   ;and on the west by 	i  

The total area being requested includes approximately 	 , acres and serves , current customers. 

This transaction will  have the following effect on the current customer's rates and services: 

r- 	
„. 

  

Affected persons may file written protests and/or request a public hearing within 30 days of this notice. 

To request a hearing, you must: 

(1) state your name, mailing address and daytime telephone number; 

(2) state the applicant's name, application number or another recognizable reference to this application; 

(3) include the statement "l/we request a public hearine; 

(4) write a brief description of how you, the persons you represent, or the public interest would be adversely 

affected by the proposed transaction and transfer of the CCN; and 

(5) state your proposed adjustment to the application or CCN which would`satisfy your concerns and cause you to withdraw 

your request for a hearing. 

Only those persons who submit a written request to be notified of a hearing will receive notice if a hearing is scheduled. The 

Commission will issue the CCN requested in the referenced application unless a hearing is scheduled to consider the transaction. If no 
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protests or requests for hearing are filed during the comment period, the Commission may issue the CCN 30 days after publication of 1 6  
this notice. 

Persons who wish to protest or request a hearing on this application should write the: 

Filing Clerk 

Public Utility Commission of Texas 
1701 North Congress Avenue 

P.O. Box 13326 

Austin, Texas 78711-3326 

Se desea informacion en Espanol, puede Ilamar al 
1-888-782-8477 

Utility Representative 

Utility Name 
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AGREEMENT TO TRANSFER WATER CERTIFICATE OF 
CONVENIENCE AM) NECESSITY 

This Agreement to Transfer Water Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (the 
"Agreement') is executed between Blackland Water Supply Corporation ("Blacklane), Parker 
Creek Estates, LP. (the "Ownen, and Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County 
(the "District") to be effective October 1, 2015 ('Effective Date"). Blackland, Owner, and District 
are hereinafter sometimes referred to individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties". 

ARTICLE I 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Owner is a Texas limited partnership, and owner of an approximately 
310.205 acre tract of land located in Rockwall County and described by metes and bounds on 
Exhibit "A"  attached hereto (the "Property").; and 

WHEREAS, the District is a conservation and reclamation district created pursuant to 
Article XVI, Section 59, Texas Constitution created for the purposes, among others, of providing 
water, sanitary sewer, and drainage facilities to serve the land within and oitside its boundaries; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 49.218, Water Code, to utilize proceeds 
from the sale and issuance of its bonds to acquire a certificate of convenience and necessity 
("CCN"); and 

WHEREAS, the District encompasses the Property within its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ET.I") of the 
City of Royse City, Texas (the "City"); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City entered into that certain "Parker Creek Development 
Agreement", effective November 11, 2008, regarding the Property, as amended by that "First 
Addendum to Parker Creek Development Agreement", effective April 14, 2009 (collectively, the 
"Development Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the City and the District entered into that certain "Agreement Concerning 
Operation of the Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County', effective April 14, 
2009 (the "Operating Agreement"), pursuant to which the District agreed to be bound by certain 
provisions in the Development Agreement, as well as the provisions of the Operating Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Owner holds CCN No. 13071 to provide retail water service to 
approximately 220 acres of the Property (`Water CCN"); and 
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WHEREAS, Blackland is a non-profit water supply corporation that holds the CCN to 
provide retail water service to the remaining portion of the Property, which is approximately 90 
acres (Remainder Water CCN"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Operating Agreement, and at the request of the District, the 
Owner has agreed to transfer the Water CCN to the City in consideration of the District's 
agreement to reimburse the Owner for all of its costs incurred in connection with securing the 
Water CCN; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Operating Agreement, at the request of the District, the Owner 
has agreed to advance funds to or on behalf of the District to effect the transfer of the Remainder 
Water CCN to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City is willing to provide retail water service to all portions of the Property 
for which it holds a Water CCN; and 

WHEREAS, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, Blackland agrees to transfer 
its Remainder Water CCN to the City for consideration provided by Owner on behalf of the 
District. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants of the Parties set 
forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration and adequacy of which are 
acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND FINDINGS 

The Parties hereby find that the recitals set forth above are tnie and correct in all materials 
respects. 

ARTICLE III 

REMAINDER CCN TRANSFER PROCESS 

The District, at request of Owner, will engage special connsel (`CCN Counser) to prepare, 
file, and process a Sale, Transfer, and Merger Application (the "STM Application") with the Public 
Utility Commission ("PUC"), to effect the transfer of the Remainder Water CCN from Blackland 
to City. Blackland will provide appropriate documents and information as requested by CCN 
Counsel to complete the STM Application. CCN Counsel will prepare the STM Application for 
review by Blackland general counsel prior to submitting to PUC. The Parties agree to cooperate 
to achieve PUC approval of the STM Application and the transfer of the Remainder Water CCN 
to the City. The cost of the preparation and processing of the STM Application shall be paid by 
or on behalf of District with funds to be advanced by Owner. 
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ARTICLE IV 

OWNER PAYMENTS ON BEHALF OF DISTRICT 

On behalf of District, Owner will pay $15,000 to Blackland within 10 days of execution of 
this Agreement by all Parties. On behalf of District, Owner will also pay legal fees incurred by 
Blackland to review the STM Application, not to exceed $5,000, within 30 days of being presented 
with an invoice from Blackland. 

ARTICLE V 

OPERATING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into by the District and Owner pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 2.1 of the Operating Agreement. The District acknowledges that the funds paid by Owner 
to or on behalf of District shall be reimbursed in accordance with the rules of the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality ("TCEQ"). 

ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

6.01 Notices. 

Any notice to be given hereunder by a Party to any other Party shall be in writing and 
may be effected by delivery in person or by facsimile, or by sending said notice by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the address set forth below. Notice shall be deemed given by mail 
when deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed. 

To District: 	Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County 
Attn: President 
c/o Crawford & Jordan LLP 
19 Briar Hollow Lane, Suite 245 
Houston, Texas 77027 
Fax: (713) 627-3909 

To Owner: Parker Creek Estates, L.P. 
Attn: Huffines Communities 
8200 Douglas Avenue, Suite 300 
Dallas, Texas 75225 
Fax: (214) 750-5900 
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To Blackland: 	Blackland Water Supply Corporation 
Attn: Jennifer Cannon 
P. O. Box 215 
Fate, Texas 75132 
Fax : (972) 771-3276 

Either Party may change its address for notice by giving the other Party written notice of such 
change in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph. 

6.02 Effect of Force Majeure. 

In the event a Party is rendered unable by force majeure to carry out any of its non-
monetary obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, then the obligations of that Party, 
to the extent affected by the force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the 
inability, provided however, that due diligence is exercised to resume performance at the earliest 
practical thne. As soon as reasonably possible after the occurrence of the force majeure relied 
upon to suspend performance, the Party whose contractual obligations are affected thereby shall 
give notice and full particulars of the force majeure to the other Party. The cause, as far as possible, 
shall be remedied with all reasonable diligence. Notwithstanding any term to the contrary in this 
section, "force majeure does not apply to the failure of a Party to timely make any payments 
required by the Agreement. 

6.03 No Third Party Beneficiaries. 

This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto, and no other person has 
any right, interest or claim under this Agreement. 

6.04 Intent. 

The Parties hereto covenant and agree that they shall execute and deliver such other 
and further instruments and documents as are, or may become, necessary or convenient to 
effectuate and carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

6.05 Representations. 

The signatories hereto represent and affirm that they have authority to execute this 
Agreement on behalf of the respective Parties hereto. All matters stated in the preamble of this 
Agreement are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into the body of this Agreement as 
though set forth in their entirety herein. 

6.06 Severability. 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any word, phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section, or other part of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance shall ever be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such word, 
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phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or other party of this Agreement to other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid 
or unconstitutional portion had never been contained therein. 

6.07 Entire Agreement. 

The Agreement, including any exhibits and/or addendums attached hereto and made a 
part hereof, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relative to the subject matter of 
this Agreement. All prior agreements, covenants, representations, or warranties, whether oral or 
in writing, between the Parties are merged herein. 

6.08 Amendment. 

No amendment of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until it is duly approved 
by each Party and reduced to a writing signed by the authorized representatives of the District, 
407, and Town, respectively, which amendment shall incorporate this Agreement in every 
particular not otherwise changed by the amendment. 

6.09 Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas and all obligations of the parties are expressly deemed performable in Rockwall County, 
Texas. 

6.10 Binding Agreement. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding upon the successors and 
permitted assigns of the Parties hereto. 

6.11 No Waiver Implied. 

The failure of any Party to insist upon performance of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not be construed as a waiver of the future performance of such provision by the other Party. 

6.12 Captions. 

The captions of each section of this Agreement are inserted solely for convenience and 
shall never be given effect in construing the duties, obligations or liabilities of the Parties hereto 
or any provisions hereof, or in ascertaining the intent of either Party, with respect to the provisions 
hereof. 

6.13 Interpretations. 

This Agreement and the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to 
effectuate the purposes set forth herein and to sustain the validity of this Agreement. 
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BLACKLAND WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION 

Jennifer Rene Cannon 

6.14 Venue. 

Any action at law or in equity brought to enforce or interpret any provision of this 
Agreement shall be brought in a state court of competent jurisdiction with venue in Rockwall 
County, Texas. 

6.15 Context. 

Whenever the context requires, the gender of all words herein shall include the 
masculine, feminine and neuter, and the number of all words shall include singular and plural. 

6.16 Assignment. 

The rights and obligations of a Party under this Agreement may not be assigned without 
the prior written consent of the other Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. This 
Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns 
of the Parties. 

6.17 Effective Date. 

This Agreement shall be effective from and after the Effective Date. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each• of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative in multiple copies, each of equal dignitY', on the date or dates 
indicated below. 

EXECUTED on this tivz.k  1ay of  koN  ilsc2 0 1 5 , but to be effective as of the Effective 
Date. 

Secretary 
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By: 	Bellaire Oaks, Inc., 
a Texas corporation 

Its: 	General Partner 

By. 

Name Printed: 

JULIANNE E PRUDHOMME 
My Commiesion Expires 
, November 19, 2016 

IL-eel/6 
otary Public, State Texas 

PARKER CREEK ESTATES, L.P., a Texas 
limited partnership 

Title:  -41-1/43,-,4-4/3  

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF  a iio _5 

This instrument wlas, ac pwledged before me on NoV. 13 . 	2015, by 
Id 11 14117:  nei &pap?  ‘ 
	

aire Oaks, Inc., a Texas corporation, in its capacity as General 
Partner of Parker Creek Estates, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said corporation, 
on behalf of said limited partnership. 
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AT 	IEST: 

Notary i blic aid for1 State olTexas 

PARKER CREEK MUNICIPAL U1ILITY 
DISTRICT OF ROCKWALL COUNTY 

B y: 	_ 	 _  
PfeSident, Board -ofDrrectors 

By: 

	

	  
Secretary, Board of Directors 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL § 

Before me: the undersigned notary pu:blic appeared  tA)t-t-64,-,,k„. 	news.,  President of 
Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County, a political subdivision of the State 
of Texas, on behalf of said political subdivision, 

(SEAL) 

LISA 11.00MFIELD 
Notafy Public, Stote of Texos 

-My Commission Expitis 
Juno 27, 2019 

.A1 

 

   

LAParker Creek MUMAgreementS \ AGREEMENT TRANSFER WA 	I hit CCN. docx 
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EXHIBIT  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEING a tract of land located in the S.C. WRIGHT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 218, Rockwall 
County, Texas and being part of a tract of land described in Deed to Parker Creek Estates, L.P., 
recorded in Volume 2855, Page 252 (Doc. No. 00272567), Deed Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set at the 
intersection of the Easterly right-of-way line of F.M. 548, a variable width right-of-way, with the 
approximate centerline of Crenshaw Road, said point being the most Northerly corner of said 
Parker Creek Estates, L.P. tract; 

THENCE South 46 degrees 24 minutes 20 seconds East, along the approximate centerline of 
said Crenshaw Road, a distance of 5123.44 feet to a 3/8 inch iron rod found at the most Easterly 
corner of said Parker Creek Estates, L.P. tract, said point being the most Northerly comer of a 
tract of land described in Deed to John H. Crenshaw, Jr., recorded in Volume 126, Page 887, 
Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 

THENCE South 43 degrees 47 minutes 21 seconds West, along the common line of said Parker 
Creek Estates, L.P. and John H. Crenshaw, Jr. tracts, a distance of 2697.97 feet to a 1 1/4 inch 
diameter axle found for corner at the most Southerly corner of said Parker Creek Estates,,L.P. 
tract, said point being North 42 degrees 49 minutes 03 seconds West, a distance of 361.66 feet 
from the most Westerly corner of said John H. Crenshaw, Jr. tract, said point also being an ell 
corner of a tract of land described in Deed to Dean M. Gand-Y, recorded in Volume 688, Page 
258, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 

THENCE North 45 degrees 36 minutes 22 seconds West, along the common line of said Parker 
Creek Estates, L.P. and said Dean M. Gandy tracts, a distance of 4893.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 
rod found for comer in the East right-of-way line of said F.M. 548; 

THENCE North 00 degrees 57 minutes 55 seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 
169.42 feet to a 1/2  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner at the 
beginning of a curve to the right having a central angle of 44 degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds, a 
radius of 222.04 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 21 degrees 18 minutes 05 
seconds East, 168.27 feet; 

THENCE Westerly, along said curve to the right, an arc distance of 172.58 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner; 

THENCE North 43 degrees 34 minutes 05 seconds East, along said Easterly right-of-way line, a 
distance of 2266.78 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for 
corner; 
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THENCE North 00 degrees 37 minutes 55 seconds West, a distance of 53.90 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner: 

THENCE North 43 degrees 33 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 47.85 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING and containing 310.202 acres of land, more or less. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
SALE, TRANSFER, MERGER APPLICATION 

3. Please add Mark H. Zeppa, attorney, as a contact on this application. This application is being 
submitted in conjunction with an application by Parker Creek Estates. Mr. Zeppa's contact 
information is 4833 Spicewood Springs Road, Suite 202, Austin, Texas 78759; 512 346-4100. 

	

14. 	No rates are currently being charged. City Council will set appropriate rates for these 
affected customers after the transaction has closed. 

	

16. 	See attached fmancial information. Royse City is a home rule city with an excellent credit 
rating. It will be acquiring the affected service area and utility plant without significant capital 
outlay by the City. As a Texas municipality, Royse City is required to prepare annual budgets and 
will do so in the future incorporating these new utility service areas. This budgeting process has 
not yet occurred for these areas. 

To demonstrate Royse City's financial resources, the parties submit copies of its five most recent 
annual audits and budgets. No material changes are expected during the initial developer periods 
of the affected service areas since the developer will be providing the capital necessary to start up 
the utilities. Waiver of any additional FMT data is requested. 

17.A. Since there are no customers yet receiving potable water service, the TCEQ has not yet 
issued a PWS number for this system. 

17.B. This sewer system will not have a TPDES or water quality permit number because all 
sewage will be treated and disposed of by a third party wholesale service provider. This provider 
will be a regional water district. 

18. Yes. The systems are not built but will be built to meet all necessary TCEQ standards. 

19. See attached Development Agreement. 

	

21. 	Joseph A. Adams 
	

Water Operator D 
	

W00037411 
Dylan R. Tawwater Water Operator D 

	
W00037416 

Joshua K. White 
	

Customer Service Insp. 	 CI0007351 
Joshua K. White 
	

Backflow Prey Assembly Tester 
	

BP0014006 
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Bryan W. Shaw, Ph.D., P.E., Chairman 
Toby Baker, Commissioner 
Jon Niermann, Commissioner 
Richard A. Hyde, P.E., Executive Director 
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAt QUAL= 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

September 16, 2016 

The Honorable Janet Nichol 
Mayor of Royse City 
PO Box 638 
Royse City, Texas 76249 

Re: 	Notice of Compliance with Notice of Violation (NOV) dated May 27, 2016: 
City of Royse City PM, 1101 N Josephine, Royse City, Rockwall County, Texas 
RN101391696, PWS ID No. 1990002, Investigation No. 1330579, Incident No. 228753 

Dear Mayor Nichol: 

This letter is to inform you that Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) 
Dallas/Fort Worth (D/FW) Regional Office has received‘adequate compliance documentation on 
August 23, 2016, to resolve the alleged violation documented during the investigation of the 
above-referenced regulated entity conducted on April 5, 2016. Based on the information 
submitted, TCEQ records indicate that compliance with the above-referenced NOV has been 
achieved. 

The TCEQ appreciates your assistance in this matter and your compliance efforts to ensure 
protection of the States environment. If you or men2bers of your staff have any questions, 
please feel free to contact Ms. Crystal Watkins at the D/FW Regional Office at (817) 588-5804. 

Sincerely, 

Charles Marshall 
Team Leader, Public Water Supply Program 
D/FW Regional Office 
Texas Commission on Environniental Quality 

CM/cdw 

Enclosure: 	Summary of Investigation Findings 

Caild. Dario Lopez, City of Royse Qty, PO Box 638, Royse City, Texas 76249 

TCEQ Region 4-Da1las/Fort Worth • 2309 Gravel Dr. • Fort Worth•Texas 76118-695i • 817-5E8-5800 • Fax 817-588-5700 

Austin Headquarters: 512-239-1000 • tceq.texas.gov  • How is our customer service? tceq.iexas.gov/customersurvey  
printed on recycled paper 
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ummm  of Inves gation Fin ings 	- 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY PWS 
	

Investigation # 

1101 N JOSEPHINE 
	

Investarn3Bate: 09/06/2016 
ROYSE CITY, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TX 75189 

Additional ID(s): 1990002 

ALLEGED VIOLAtION(SYNOTED AND FIESOLVEb 

Track No: 603104 
30 TAC Chapter 290.110(c)(5) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1330579 
	

Comment Date: 05/17/2016 

Failure to perform chloramine effectiveness sampling. 

30 TAC 290.110(c)(5) states that public water systems with a chloramine residual shall 
monitor to ensure that monochloramine is the prevailing chloramine species and that 
nitrification is controlled. Sample sites .and procedures used for chloramine effectiveness 
sampling must be documented in the system% nitrification action plan (NAP) required by 
§290.46(z) of this title (relating to Minimum Acceptable Operating Practices for Public 
Drinking Water Systems). Sample results determined by monitoring required under this 
paragraph will not be used to determine cornpliance with the maximum contaminant levels, 
MRDLs, action levels, or treatment techniques of this subchapter. 

On the day of the Investigation, the water system distributes chloraminated water but was not 
monitoring the monochloramine and free ammonia to ensure that monochloramine was the 
prevailing chloramine species. Nitrate and nitrite were also not being monitored to ensure 
nitrification is controlled. 
Investigation: 1345369 	 Comment Date: 07/31/2016 

Failure to perform chloramine effectiveness sampling. 

During the file record review investigation, compliance documentation submitted by the water 
system was not sufficient to resolve the alleged violation. 
Investigation: 1358630 	 Comment Date: 09/06/2016 

Failure to perform chloramine effectiveness sampling 

During the file record review investigation, compliance documentation had been submitted by 
the water system to resolve the alleged violation. 
Recommended Corrective Action: Begin monitoring for total chlorine, monochloramine, free 
ammonia, nitrate, and nitrite levels at the entry point and in the distribution system at the 
frequency required by 30 TAC 290.110(c)(5). Provkle one month of documentation to the 
regional office to verify that the alleged violation has been resolved. 
Resolution: On August 23, 2016, the water system provided one month% worth of sampling 
data for total chlorine, monochloramine, and free ammonia. It appears the alleged violation has 
been resolved. 

Summary of Investigation Findings 	 Page 1 of 1 
62 
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AGREEMENT CONCERNING OPERATION 
OF THE PARICER CREEK MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

OF ROCKWALL COUNTY 

This Agreement Concerning Operation of the Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of 
Rockwall County (this "Aarcemenr)  is entered into by the City of Royse City, Texas (the 
"City")  and the Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County, a rnunicipal utility 
created pursuant to Article XVI, Section -59, and Article III, Section 52, of the Texas 
Constitution (the "District"),  to be effective tInvurrrlyer—,-2tee (the "Effective Date). 
upon -fht, acedive. dwie, .-P i•he PariesavCrek rty;t44,rn ewe-  /ga 

ARTICLE I 
RECITALS  

WHEREAS, Parker Creek Estates, L.P., a Texas limited partnership (the "Owner"),  is 
the owner of an approximately 310.205-acre tract in ROckwall County, Texas, described on 
Exhibit A  (the "Property");  and 

WHEREAS, the District encompasses the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the District was created by order of the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality ("TCEQ") dated June 20, 2004; and 

WHEREAS, thc powers of the District were amended by Chapter 8123, Special District 
Local Laws Code, as amended by S.B. 2054 adopted by the 80th  Texas Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City entered into that certain "City of Royse City/Parker 
Creek Settlement Agreemenr effective on Aim 3, 2004 (the "Settlement Agreemenr);  and 

WHEREAS, since the effective date of the Settlement Agreement, many of the issues 
addressed by the Settlement Agreement have bccn 'resolved and the Owner and the City have 
negotiated the Parker Creek Development Agreement (thc "Development ARreement")  which 
will replace the Settlement Agreement in its entirety; and 

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement states that it may be amended only with the 
written consent of the City, the*Owner and the District; and 

WHEREAS, the purposes of this Agreement are for the District to consent to amending 
and restating the Settlement Agreement by execution of the Development Agreement and to 
agree to be bound by certain provisions contained in the Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Blaeldand Water Supply Corporation ("Blackland")  holds the certificate 
of convenience and necessity ("CCN") to provide retail water service to approximately 90 acres 
within the Property (the "Blackland Water CCN"); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner holds CCN No. 13071 (the "Water CCN")  to provide retail 
water service to the approximately 220 acres of thc Property that are not included within the 
Blacldand Water CCN, and previously agreed to transfer the Water CCN to the District in 

Agreement Concerning Operation of Parker Creek 
MUD of Rockwall County 
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consideration for the District's agreement to reimburse the Owner for all of the costs incurred in 
connection with securing and transferring such CCN; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Development Agreement and at the request of the District, 
the Owner has agreed to transfer the Water CCN to the City at no charge upon the City's 
approval of the first final plat for all or a portion of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, if the District obtains the Blackland Water CCM.  the District will transfer 
such CCN to the City at no charge; and 

. 	WHEREAS, the Owner holds CCN No. 20968 to provide retail wastewater service to the 
Property the (`Wastewater CCN")  and previously agreed to transfer the Wastewater CCN to the 
District in consideration for the District's agreernent to reimburse the Owner for all of the costs 
incurred in connection with securing and transferring such CCN; and _ 

- WHEREAS, pursuant to the Development Agreement and at the request of the District, 
the Owner has agreed to transfer the Wastewater CCN to the City at no charge upon the City's 
approval of the first final plat of all or a portion of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the District acknowledges that the transfer of the Water CCN and the 
Wastewater CCN by Owner to the City is for the benefit of the District and its landowners, 
taxpayers and customers, and has reaffirmed its agreement to reimburse Owner for all of its costs 
incurred in connection with securing the issuance and transfer thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the North Texas Municipal Water District ("NTMWD")  are 
parties lo an agreement pursuant to which NTMWD serves as the City's wholesale wastewater 
provider and agrees to accept and treat the City's wastewater, including wastcwater generated by 
the development and use of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, with the Owner's consent, the District proposes to provide retail water and 
wastewater service to all portions of the Property included within the Water CCN and 
Wastewater CCN until such CCNs are transferred to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City will be the retail provider of water service to all portions of the 
Property for which the City holds the water CCN and the retail provider of wastewater service to 
all portions of the Property for which the City holds the wastewater CCN, and will charge retail 
customers within the Property a maximum of the base rate the City charges its residents and a 
maximum of 120% of its in-city water and wastewater rate that is based op usage; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees that it will provide service to the Property in the same 
manner it services its in-city customers, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the District are each political subdivisions of the State of 
Texas \vith the authority, pursuant to Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, Chapter 30 and 
Section 49.213, Texas Water Code, and Texas Local Goveniment Code, Section 402.014, to 
enter into this Agreement and, to the extent authorized by such statutes, to contract with respect 
to the performance of governmental functionš; and 

Agreement Concerning Operaiion of Parker Creek 
MUD of Rockwall County 
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WHEREAS, the City and the District are individually referred to as a "Party"  and 
collectively referred to as the "Partier.  

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, and 
conditions hereinafter set forth, the Parties contract and agree as follows: 

ARTICLE II 
UTILITY SERVICE 

2.1 	Retail Utility Service: Certificates of Convenience and Necessity. 

(a) The Owner shall pursue the process identified in Section 13.254(a-1) of 
the Texas Water Code for revocation or amendment of the Blackland Water CCN on 
behalf- of the District and for the benefit of the District, in accordance with the 
Development Agreement. If tile District obtains the Blackland Water CCN, the District 
will transfer that CCN to the City at no cost to the City. If the Texas Legislature adopts 
new legislation in the next legislative session that amends the processes in Sections 
13.254 or 13.255 of the Texas Water Code, the Parties will discuss how the legislation 
impacts the ability of the Owner, the District, or the City to obtain the Blackland Water 
CCN and determine whether the Owner, the District, or the City should proceed under the 
new legislation. 

(b) The District acknowledges and agrees that the City will not provide 
wastewater service to any portion of the Property for which it does not, hOld the CCN 
allowing the City to provide retail water service. 

(c) Pursuant to the Development Agreement and at the request of the District, 
the Owner will transfer the Water CCN to the City at Ito charge upon the City's approval 
of the first final plat for all or a portion of the Property. 

(d) Pursuant to the Development Agreement and at the request of the District, 
the Owner will transfer the \Vastewater, CCN to the City at no charge upon the City's 
approval of the first final plat for all or a portion of the Property. 

(e) The District acknowledges, approves and agrees to the Owner's transfer of 
the Water CCN and the Wastewater CCN to the City and acknowledges that such transfer 
is for the benefit of the District and its landowners, taxpayers and customers. The 
District reaffirms its agreement to reimburse the Owner or the City for all of its costs 
incurred in connection with securing the issuance and transfer thereof. 

(0 	The City will be the retail provider of water service to portions of the 
Property for which it holds the water CCN, and the retail provider of wastewater service 
to portions of the Property for which it holds the wastewater CCN. Pdor to the transfer 
of the CCNs to the City, the City agrees that the District shall serve as the retail water and 
wastewater provider within the areas of the Water CCN and Wastewater CCN, subject to 
the consent and approval of the Owner. 
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(g) In its role as the retail provider, the City agrees to charge homeowners a 
maximum of the same base rate the City charges to residents within the City's corporate 
limits and a maximum of 120% of the rate the City charges to residents within the City's 
corporate limits based on usage. The City agrees that, as the retail provider, it will 
provide the Property with adequate water pressure for the full development of the 
Property (including adequate fire flows) to those areas for which the City holds the CCN 
and will not terminate water or wastewater service to residents within the Property so 
described in the event of a shortage or other shnilar circumstance to any greater extent 
than is applicable to property within the City limits. 

(h) The Property shall be served with adequate fire flows, as required by the 
Subdivision Regulations, provided that the City provides sufficient water for fire flows 
within its certificated area. Nothing herein shall be construed to obligate the City to 
provide fire flows to land outside its certificated arca. TO the extent Blacicland continues 
to hold the Blaciclancl Water CCN, the District acknowledges that the City may deny the 
plat for land within the Blackland Water CCN if such land cannot be served with 
adequate fire flows as required by the Subdivision Regulations. 

2.2 	Reservatión of Capacity. The City agrees to contract for water and wastewater 
capacities from the NTMWD and to reserve sufficient capacities in the City's water and 
wastewater system sufficient to serve full development of the Property, except where the CCN 
for water or wastewater service is held by an entity other than the City or the District. For 
puiposes of this section, sufficient water capacity includes adequate capacity in the Off-Site 
Water Improvements (as defined in the Development Agreement) or equivalent improvements. 
The City shall subscribe for utility service from NTMWD and provide capacities in its utility 
system at times and in amounts as will permit the continued and orderly development of the 
proposed 1,025 lots upon the Property, except as provided above, The City and the District 
agree to coordinate their respective utility service planning and capital improvement planning 
hnd construction activities in order for the City to meet its obligations established under this 
section and the Development Agreement. 

ARTICLE III 
LIMITATION ON DISTRICT'S OBLIGATIONS 

AND TRANSFER OF TERRITORY  

3.1. 	Limitation on Bonded and Contractual indebtedness.  

(a) 	The District will inpare an engineering report that will identify the total 
amount of bonds that will be necessary to finance the cost of the water, sanitary sewer, 
drainage, roads, grading, and landscaping improvements, including engineering design 
and inspection fees, and related land costs, operation and maintenance costs, District 
creation and organization costs, and other customary non-construction costs related to the 
issuance of such bonds, that will serve the Property with 1,025 platted lots. TUC 
engineering report shall identify the projects to be reimbursed by District bonds, and only 
the projects listed in the engineering report shall be authorized reimbursable projects 
under TCEQ guidelines and other applicable State law. 
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(b) The engineering report will serve as the basis for the utility bond and road 
bond propositions (collectively, "Bond Propositions")  to be submitted to the duly 
qualified resident electors of the District at an election duly called for such purpose. 

(c) The Bond Propositions, once approved by the voters of the District, shall 
establish the maximum amount of bonds that the District may issue from time to time for 
purposes of reimbursing the Owner for the Owner's costs to fully develop the Property 
with 1,025 platted lots. The District will not issue bonds or incur contractual indebtedness 
for purposes of reimbursing the Owner for costs or expenses except as identified in the 
Bond Propositions without thc express written consent of the City. Once the District has 
issued a series of bonds, the District will not refinance that series of bonds in a manner 

• that will extend the term or increase the principal amount of the bonds proposed for 
refinancing. 

(d) 	The City's consent to the District's Road Projects (as defined in Article V 
herein) has been granted based on the District's covenants in this section and, but for 
such covenants, the City would not have consented to the Road Projects. 

	

3.2 	No Transfer of Territory.  Notwithstanding any provision of state law to the 
contrary, the District shall not transfer any of the Property to the extraterritorial jurisdiction of 
another municipality, or annex additional territory without the express written consent of the 
Ci ty. 

ARTICLE IV 
INCORPORATION PETITION; ANNEXATION; 

DISSOLUTION OF DISTRICT  

	

4.1 	Annexation Upon Petition. 

(a) If a petition requesting consent to incorporation pursuant to Section 
42.04] of the Texas Local Government Code is submitted to the City (i) signed by the 
requisite number of qualified voters and by owners of more than 50 percent of the 
Property; or (ii) after occupancy of the 600111  single family home within the Property, 
signed by a minimum of 100 qualified voters and by owners of more than 50 percent of 
the property covered by the petition; then, in either case, the City shall give immediate 
written notice of such petition to the Owner and the District, together with a tnic and 
comet copy thereof. 

(b) Upon receipt of a petition under Section 4.I(a), the City shall have the 
right to full purpose annex the entire Property to the extent permitted by law, subject to 
the City's (i) assumption of the District's outstanding obligations, as required by law and 
including, but not limited to, all outstanding District bonds and obligations pursuant to 
any reimbursement agreement between the District and any owner of all or a portion of 
the Property; and (ii) payment of unreimbursed, eligible expenses as required by Section 
43.0715(b) of the Texas Local Govenunent Code. 
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4.2 	Dissolution of District.  Upon full purpOse annexation of thc Property, the District 
shall be dissolved whereupon the City shall assume the obligations of the Distriaas required by 
law and Section 4.1. 

	

4.3 	Legislation.  The District agrees to support any legislation sponsored by the City - 
to eliminate or limit incorporation of land in the City's ETJ when the land is subject to a 
development agreement and lies within the territory of a special water district, which support 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned. 

ARTICLE V 
ROAD POWERS 

The City consents to and authorizes the District to construct, acquire, improve, maintain, 
or operate paved roads and enhancements or improvements to those roads in or adjacent to the 
District generally illustrated on Exhibit C  (the "Road Projects")  which projects are subject to 
change as stated on Exhibit C.  The District expressly approves and affirms the Road Projects. 
The City's consent to the District's Road Projects is based on the District's covenants in Section 
3.1 and Section 3.2, but for such covenants, the City would not have consented to the Road 
Projects. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONSENT TO EXECUTION OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

The District consents to execution of the Development Agreement by the City and the 
Owner, which agreement amends and restates the provisions of the Settlement Agreement and 
replaces the Settlement Agreemefit in its entirety. 

ARTICLE VII 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall be effective from the Effective Date and shall continue in effect 
until the earliest of:, (i) dissolution of the District; (ii) termination of the Agreement in writing by 
tuutual agreement of the City and the District; or (iii) fifty (50) years after the Effective Date, 

ARTICLE VIII 
• BREACH, NOTICE AND REMEDIES  

8.1 	Notification of Breach.  If either Party commits a breach of this Agreement, the 
non-breaching Party shall give Notice to the breaching Party that describes the breach in 
reasonable detail. 

't7 

• 8.2 	Cure of Breach.  The breaching Party shall commence curing such breach within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the time the breaching Party receives such Notice and complete 
the cure within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of commencement of the cure; however, if 
the breach is not reasonably susceptible to cure by the breaching Party within such 30-day 
period, the non-breaching Party shall not bring any action so long as the breaching Party has 
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commenced to cure the default within such 30-day period and diligently completes the cure 
within a reasonable time without unreasonable cessation of the work. 

8.3 	Remedies for Breach. Utile breaching Party does not cure such breach within the 
stated period of time, the non-breaching Party may, in its sole discretion, and without prejudice 
to any other right under .this Agreement, law, or equity, seek an action under the Uniform 
Declaratoiy Judgment Act, specific performance, mandamus, injunctive relief, and other 
remedies described in this Agreement; provided, however, (a) the non-breaching Party shall not 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, except the City may terminate this Agreement in the 
event of a breach by the District of its obligations in Article III and failure to cure in accordance 
with this Article VIII, or in the event of the successful incorporation of all or part of the 
Property by petition of property owners pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov't Code sec. 41.04 1, which 
shall result in a termination of this Agreement only to the extent this Agreement applies to the 
portion of the Property that is incoiporated; (b) each Party specifically waives any right such 
Party has or in the future may have to terminate this Agreement, except the City may terminate 
this Agreemcnt.in  the event of a breach by the District of its obligations in Article III and failure 
to cure in accordance with this Article VIII; and (e) it is understood and agreed that 110 Party 
will seek or recover actual, consequential or any other type of monetary damages or awards. 
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ARTICLE IX 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

9,1 	Notice. Any notices, certifications, approvals, or other communications (a 
"Notice") required to be given by one Party to another under this Agreement shall be given in 

, writing addressed to the Party to be notified at the address set forth below and shall be deemed 
given: (a) when the Notice is delivered in person to the person to whose attention the Notice is 
addressed; (b) when received if the Notice is deposited in the United States Mail, .certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; (c) when the Notice is delivered by 
Federal Express, UPS, or another nationally recognized courier service with evidence of delivery 
signed by any person at the deliveiy address; or (d) five business days after the Notice is sent by 
FAX (with electronic confirmation by the sending FAX machine) with a confirming copy sent by 
United States mail \vithin 48 hours after the FAX is sent. If any date or period provided in this 
Agreement ends on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the applicable period for calculating the 
Notice shall be extended to the first business day following the Saturday, Sunday, or legal 
holiday. For the purpose of giving any Notice, the addresseS of the Parties are set forth below. 
The Parties may change the information set forth below by sending Notice of such changes to the 
other Party as provided in this Section 9.1. 

To the City: 

Attn: City Manager 
305 N. Arch St 
Roysc City, Texas 75189 

3 

With a copy to: 

City Attorney 
305 N. Arch St 
Royse City, Texas 75 I 89 

To the District: 

Parker Creek Municipal Utility District of Rockwall County 
Attn: Clay Crawford 
Crawford & Jordan, LLP 
3100 McKinnon Street, Suite 950 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
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With a copy to: 

Parker Creek Estates, L.P. 
Attn: Phillip Huffines 
8200 Douglas Avenue, Suite 300 
Dallas, Texas 75225 

With a copy to:  

K&L Gates, LLP 
Attn: Melissa Lindelow 
301 Commerce Street, Suite 3000 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102 

	

9.2 	No Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by the other 
Party of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver thereof, and the Party 
shall have the right at any time thereafter to insist upon strict performance of, any and all 
provisions of this Agreement. No provision of this Agreement rnay be waived except by writing 
signed by the Party waiving such provision. Any waiver shall be limited to the specific purposes 
for which it is given. No waiver by any Party hereto of any term or condition of this Agreement 
shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other term or condition or subsequent waiver 
of the same term or condition. 

	

9.3 	Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement must be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, as they apply to contracts performed within the 
State of Texas and without regard to any choice of law rules or principles to the contrary. The 
Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is performable in Rockwall County, Texas and hereby 
submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of Rockwall County, Texas, and agree that any such 
courts shall bc a proper forum for the determination of any dispute arising hereunder. 

	

9.4 	Authority to Execute.  The City warrants that this Agreement has been approved 
by the City Council in accordance with all applicable public meeting and public notice 
requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open Meetings Act) 
and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been authorized to clo 
so. The District warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with all applicable public meeting and public notice requirements (including, but not 
limited to, notices required by the Texas Open Meetings Act) and that the individual executing 
tliis Agreement on behalf of the Board has been authorized to do so. 

9.5 	Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable and, in the event 
any word, phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or other provision of this Agreement, or 
the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall ever be held or determined to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable for any reason, and the extent of such invalidity or 
unenforceability does not cause substantial deviation from the underlying intent of the Parties as 
expressed in this Agreement, then such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement 
with respect to such person, entity or circumstance, without invalidating the remainder of this 
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Agreement or the application of such provision to other persons, entities or circumstances except 
to thc extent that the severed provision(s) is a dependent substantive term the removal of which 
affects the intent and effect of the remaining provisions. 

9.6 	Chanees in State or Federal Laws. If any state or federal law changes so as to 
make it impossible for the City or the District to perform its obligations under this Agreement, 
the Parties will cooperate to amend this Agreement in such a manner that is most consistent with 
the original intent of this Agreement as legally possible. 

9.7 	Additional Documents and Acts. The Parties agree that at any time after execution 
of this Agreement, they will, upon the request of any other Party, execute and/or exchange any 
other documents necessary to effectuate the terms of this Agreement and perform any further 
acts or things as the other Party may reasonably request to effectuate the terms of this 
Agreernent. 

9.8 	Ca )tions. Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and shall not be deemed a part of this Agreement. 

9.9 	Assienment. Neither the District nor thc City may assign this Agreement without 
the written consent of the other Party. 

9.10 Amendment, This Agreement may be amended only with the written consent of 
all Partics and with approval of the governing bodies of the City and the District. 

9.11 	Interpretation. The Parties acknowledge that each Party and, if it so chooses, its 
- counsel have reviewed and revised this Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the 
effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not be employed in 
the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto. As used in this 
Agreement, the term "includine means "including without limitation" and the term "days" 
means calendar days, not business days. Wherever required by the context, the singular shall 
include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular. Each defined term herein may be 
used in its singular or plural form whether or not so defined. 

9.12 Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in this section, this Agreement is 
solely for the benefit of the City and the District, and neither the City nor the District intends by 
any provision of this Agreement to create any rights in any third-party beneficiaries or to confer 
any benefit upon or enforceable rights under this Agreement or otherwise upon anyone other 
than the City or the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City and the District intend that 
the Owner shall be a third-party beneficiary. 

9.13 Incorporation of Exhibits by Reference. All exhibits attached to this Agreement 
are incorporated into this Agreement by reference for the purposes set forth herein, as follows: 

Exhibit A 	Legal description of the Property 
Exhibit B 	Illustration of Road Projects 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY ATTEST: 

STEPHANIE MODISETTE 
s Notary Public, State of Texas 

My Commission Expires 
Daaember 22, 2009 [SEAL J 	%%PA 	 

9.14 Defined Terms. Unless otherwise expressly defined herein, capitalized terms 
_shall have the same meaning as set out in the Development Agreement. 

9,15 Counterpart Oriainals. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original. 

4 0 

Date: A PaiL, 	a9,0, 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL 

This instrument was acknowledged before me, on t1ie,;).3 day of jar( 	, 2000 
by  -5; 0, %..e.1\ cast  , ruor-  	of the City of Royse City, Texas on behalf of said city. 

S 	MockidA 
Notarÿ Public, State of Texas 
Printed Name:  S-)-ei) hart i e__ Mod ise  
My Commission Expires:  bee..• a a, acoct  
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PARKER CREEK MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRIOOCKALL COUNTY 

t : Prednt. Board of ectors 

Date: 	 6.2 7 

STATE OF - 

COUNTY OF C-U)..0_0_. 

This instrument was acknowledged before me, on the 2S day of 	'Maki  , 2007, 4' 
by 1,3abarit eir 1.4 mon,Vies id ent of the Board of Directors of Parker Creek Municipal Utility 
District of Rockwall County, on behalf of said entity. 	 . 

( 	 --.-D 

Notary Palle, State of exas  
Printed Name:  L.; c"2 -"Dcz,c:--,-,..NE.1..0  
My Commission Expires:  6Urlt 2:1  , '2.--C3 k 1  

LISA BLOOMFIELD 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

June 27, 2011 
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EXHIBIT A  

METES AND BOONDS DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

BEING a tract of land located in the S.C. WRIGHT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 218, Rockwall 
County, Texas and being part of a tract of land described in Deed to Parker Creek Estates, L.P., 
re-corded in Volume 2855, Page 252 (Doc. No. 00272567), Deed Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow.  plastic cap stamped "DAA" set at the 
intersection of the Easterly right-of-way line of F.M. 548, a variable width right-of-way, with the 
approximate centerline of Crenshaw Road, said point being the most Northerly corner of said 
Parker Creek Estates, L.P. tract; 

THENCE South 46 degrees 24 minutes 20-seconds East, along the approxitnate centerline of 
said Crenshaw Road, a distance of 5123.44 feet to a 3/8 inch iron rod found at the most Easterly 
corner of said Parker Creek Estates, L.P. tract, said point being the most Northerly corner of a 
tract of land described in Deed to John H. Crenshaw, Jr., recorded in Volume 126, Page 887, 
Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 

THENCE South 43 degrees 47 minutes 21 seconds West, along the common line of said Parker 
Creek Estates, L.P. and John H. Crenshaw, Jr. tracts, a distance of 2697.97 feet to a 1 1/4 inch 
diameter axle found for corner at the most Southerly corner of said Parker Creek Estates, L.P. 
tract, said point being North 42 degrees 49 minutes 03 seconds West, a distance of 361.66 feet 
from the most Westerly corner of said John H. Crenshaw, Jr. tract, said point also being an ell 
corner of a tract of land described in Deed to Dean M. Gandy, recorded in Volume 688, Page 
258, Deed Records, Rocicwall County, Texas; 

THENCE North 45 degrees 36 minutes 22 seconds West, along the common line of said Parker 
Creek Estates, L.P. and said Dean M. Gandy tracts, a distance of 4893.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 
rod found for collier in the East right-of-way line of said F.M. 548; 

THENCE North 00 degrees 57 minutes 55 seconds West, along said East line, a distance of 
169.42 feet to a 1 /2  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner at the 
beginning of a curve to the right having a central angle of 44 degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds, a 
radius of 222.04 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 21 degrees 18 minutes 05 
seconds East, 168.27 feet; 

THENCE Westerly, along said curve to the right, an arc distance of 172.58 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner; 

THENCE North 43 degrees 34 minutes 05 seconds East, along said Easterly right-of-way line, a 
distance of 2266.78 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for . 
corner; 
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THENCE North 00 degrees 37 minutes 55 seconds West, a distance of 53.90 feet to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped "DAA" set for corner; 

THENCE North 43 degrees 33 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 47.85 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING and containing 310.202 acres of land, more or less. 
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EXHIBIT B 

ILLUSTRATION OF ROAD PROJECTS 
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FIRST ADDENDUM TO PARKER CREEK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This First Addendum to that certain Development Agreement (the "Development 
Azreement") approved by the City on November 11, 2008 (the "Addenduin") is executed 
between Parker Creek Estates, L.P. (the "OwneC) and the City of Royse City, Texas (the "City") 
to be effective April 14, 2009 (the "Effective Date). This Addendum adds covenants relating to 
maintenance of roadways and the provision of public safety services and sites within the Parker 
Creek Municipal Utility District of .Rockwall County (the •-=`Distrier) and amends the 
Development Agreement thereby. Except as modified by this Amendment, the terms and 
conditions of the Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Unless otherwise 
defined herein, all capitalized terms in this Addendum shall have the meaning given to such 
terms by the Development Agreement. 

ARTICLE I  
RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City is a home rule municipal corporation of the State of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner is a Texas limited partnership; and 

WHEREAS, the Ow= and the City are sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" 
and collectively as the "Parties"; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of an approximately 310.205-acre tract of land (the 
"Property') located in Rockwall County (the "Countr), which is the subject of the Development 
Agreement; and 	' 

WHEREAS, the Property is encompassed by the District; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the District have negotiated an operating agreement approved 
by the City on November 11, 2008 and the District on January 29, 2008 (the "Operating 
Aareemenn; and 

WHEREAS, the County has raised concerns about maintenance of Crenshaw Road 
abutting the Property and roads internal to the District pending annexation of land within the 
District to the City, which were not anticipated by the Owner, the District or the City; and 

WHEREAS, the County also has raised concerns about delivery of public safety services 
within the District pending annexntion of land within the District to the City, and 

WHEREAS, because of the concerns raised by the County, both the Development 
Agreement and the Operating Agreement with the District remain unexccuted by the City; and 

'114" Mi 
WHEREAS, on November I I, 2008, the City adopted Ordinance No.

a 
 (the "Consent  VY 

Ordinance") consenting to road projects to be undertaken by the Distriet pursuant te Senate Bill: 
No. 2054 adopted by the Texas Legislature during the 80th  regular legislative session, which 
takes effect upon execution of the Development Agreement by the City; and 
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WHEREAS, the Parties intend that this Addendum to the Development Agreement have 
thc same term as the Development Agreetnent; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the County's concerns are well taken and that the 
Development Agreement should be modified to Make additional provisions for road repair, road 
maintenance and public safety facilities and services; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have the authority to enter into this Addendum pursuant to 
Section 212.171 et seq of the Texas Local Government Code. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants of the Parties sct 
forth in this Addendum, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy 
of which are acknowledged and agreed by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE II  
ROAD REPAIR AND IMPROVEMENTS  

	

2.1 	Roadway Maintenance. Notwithstanding Section 5.5 of the Development 
Agreement or any other provision of the Development Agreement to the contrary, the Parties 
agree that, until such time as the Property is annexed.into the City's corporate limits, the Owner 
will cause the District to (a) retain ownership of the internal,roads within the District, and to 
repair and maintain such roads in good repair and to the same standard to which roads within the 
City's corporate limits are maintained; and (b) either maintain portions of Crenshaw Road 
adjacent to the Property in good repair and to the sarne standard to which roads within the City's 
corporate limits are maintained, or fund the costs of such maintenance. The Owner's Crenshaw 
Road maintenance obligations under this Article Il commence ,either upon completion of the first 
phase of Crenshaw Road improvements required by Section 5.2(b) of the Development 
Agreement or the use of any segment of Crenshaw Road adjacent to the Property that has not 
been improved to the standards in this section but is used by traffic from the development of the 
Property, whichever occurs first. The Owner's internal roadway maintenance obligations under 
this Article 11 commence upon completion of each internal roadway. 

	

2.9 	Crenshaw Road Repairs Fund. 

(a) In order to provide security for the performance of the repair and maintenance 
obligations under Section 2.1, the Owner shall deposit, or shall cause the District to deposit, the 
surn of $10,000 into an escrow account designated by the City within thirty (30) business days 
after completion of the first phase of Crenshaw Road. 

(b) The escrow account shall be interest-bearing and shall be used by the City solely 
for maintaining Crenshaw Road in accordtmee with Section 2.1. The Owner shall replenish, or 
shall cause the District to replenish, the funds in escrow following the City's draft on the account 
for road repairs within thirty (30) business days after receipt of notice by the City of the draft, 
The City shall provide thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Owner that it intends to.use 
funds in the escrow account and, in the event that the request for road repairs emanates from the 
County, the City shall provide thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Owner of such 
request and any proceedings scheduled before the Rockwall County Commissioners Court 
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regarding such request. If the Owner or the District begin repairs within such thirty (30) day 
period, the City shall not draw on the escrow account. 

(c) The Owner shall obtain, or cause the District to obtain, a good and sufficient 
maintenance bond, in the amount of $I 0,000, for the Crenshaw Road improvements required by 
Section 5.2(b) of the Development Agreement upon completion of such improvements, and 
deliver a copy of the bond to the City. The Owner shall obtain, or cause the District to obtain, a 
good and sufficient maintenance bond for all Crenshaw Road repairs made by the Owner or the 
District and deliver a copy of thc bond to thc City. All maintenance bonds shall be for a term of 
two years and shall be provided by a reputable and solvent corporate surety, as determined by the 
City, in favor of the City. At the Owner's election and subject to the City's consent, a 
performance bond, letter of credit, or other adequate financial assurances, as solely determined 
by tlie City, may be provided in lieu of the maintenance bonds required by this subsection. 

(d) If the City and the District agree, in the alternative, the Owner may provide for an 
escrow account and maintenance bond or other agreed security that is established or procured by 
the District, provided that the City may draw upon such funds or security as provided in this 
section. 

(c) 	In the event that the internal roads within the District are not maintained for any 
reason, including dissolution of the District, lack of funds or insolvency, the Owner and District 
hereby acknowledge that the internal roads within the District shall remain private, or in the 
event the District is not dissolved they shall remain the responsibility of the District, and in no 
instance shall the County be obligated to assume maintenance or repair of said roads. 

ARTICLE III  
PUBLIC SAFETY PROVISIONS 

3.1. 	Police Services. 

(a) Prior to the date on which the City or a Certified Inspector issues a certificate of 
substantial completion pursuant to Article III of the Development Agreernent (a "C.0,) for the 
500th  single-family home within the Property, the Owner shall deposit funds with the City, or 
shall cause the District to deposit funds with the City, in an earmarked account and in an amount 
sufficient to hire and equip one law enforcement officer. Such deposit is a condition precedent 
to the issuance of any building permits beyond that for the 500th  single family home within the 
Properly. 

(b) The Owner shall deposit additional funds with the City, or shall cause the 
District to deposit additional fimds with the City, in an earmarked account and in an amount 
sufficient to hire and equip one additional officer prior to the date that a Certified Inspector or 
the City approves a C.O. for the 1000'1 ' single-family home within the Property. 

(c) The funds required to be deposited with the City under Subsections 3.1(a) and (b) 
shall be paid annually, and each annual deposit for each officer shall be in an amount equal the 
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then current average salary of a full-time 'Royse City police officer, tbe cost of standard 
employee benefits provided by Roysc City to its law enforcement officers, the cost of one 
vehicle of the same type used by other Royse City law enforcement officers, and the cost of 
standard equipment issued to every Royse City law enforcement officer. 

(d) As a condition to the Owner's or the District's continuing obligations to fund 
officers and equipment under this Section 3.1, it is understood that the funds will be used 
primarily to fimd law enforcement services to the Property. Notwithstanding any other 
provisions, it is expressly acknowledged that the payment of these funds does not obligate the 
City to provide law enforcement services equivalent to that of a City resident. The law 
enforcement services may be provided by the City, or the City may use the Funds to contract with 
another law enforcement agency to provide law enforcement services to the Property. 

(e) In lieu of the Owner's obligations under this Section 3.1, the City and the District 
may enter into an interlocal agreement for the District's provision of police services to the 
Property. 

3.2 	Dedication of Fire Station Site. The Owner shall cause the District to dedicate a 
one-half acre site to the City for exclusive use as a fire station. The location within the District 
shall be determined by the Owner, but must be suitable for a fire station, as approved by the City 
under criteria applicable to fire stations inside the City's corporate limits, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned. The City may consent to a fire station 
site that is within open space or park areas indicated on the Concept Plan without necessitating 
an amendment to the Development Agreement or this Addendum, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, delayed, or condifioned. The dedication of the site to the District shall be 
a condition precedent to approval of the final plat containing the 500111  single-family residential 
lot within the Property. The Owner's obligations are lirnited to causing the District to dedicate 
land, and nothing herein shall be construed as a requirement for the Owner or District to fiind 
staffing, equipment, or other similar costs. 

Article IV 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS  

48 
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4.1 	Recordation.  Pursuant to the requirements of Section 212.172(f) of the Texas 
Local Government Codc, this Addendum shall be recorded in the deed records of the County. ln 
addition, all assignments to this Addendurn shall be recorded in the deed records of the County. 
This Addendurn, when recorded, shall be binding upon the Parties and their successors and 
assigns permitted by this Addendum and upon the Property; however, this Addendum shall not 
be binding upon, and shall not constitute any encumbrance to title as to, any End-Buyer except 
for land use and development regulations that applY to specific. lots. For purposes of this 
Addendum, the Parties agree: (a) that the term "End-Buyer" means any owner, tenant, user, or 
occupant other than a developer or builder; (b) that the term "fully developed and improved lot" 
means any Iot, regardless of proposed use,, for which a final plat has been approved by the City 
and recorded in the deed records, for which all infrastructure improvements have been installed 
and that is eligible for a certificate of substantial completion; and (c) that the term "land use and 
development regulations that apply to specific lots" mean§ all of the Governing Regulations and 
the waiver of rights under Section 42.041 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

	

4.2. 	liecitals.  The recitals contained in this Addendum: (a) are true and Correct as of 
the Effective Date; (13) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this 
Addendum (c) are legislative findings of ihe City Council, and (d) reflect the final intent of the 
Parties with regard to the subject matter of this Addendum. In the event it becomes necessary to 
interpret any provision of this Addendum, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced by the recitals, 
shall be taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given full effect. The 
Parties have relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering into this Addendum 
and, but for the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not have entered into this 
Addendum. 

	

4.3 	No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except as otherwise provided in this section, this 
Addendum only inures to the benefit of, and may only be enforced by, the Parties. If the District 
is not an Assignee, the District shall be considered a third-party beneficiary of this Addendum. 

	

4.5 	Affirmation ofDevelonment Aereement.  Except as may be modified expressly or 
hy necessary implication by this Addendum, the Parties hereby affirm the covenants contained in 
the Development Agreement in their entirety. 

	

4.6 	Expiration of Addendum.  If the City and the County fail to enter into a written 
agreement within 60 days of the Effective Date of this Addendum that acknowledges, the City's 
exclusive platting jurisdiction and authority over the development of the Property pursuant to the 
Agreement and is in a form approved by the City, such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld, delayed, or conditioned, this Addendum shall automatically expire and be of no further 
force or effect. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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Nan 
City Attorney 

ST 	OF TEXAS 

kri 	% 
or the City of Royse City, Texas on 

.} 2009 by 

Executed by the Owner and the City to be effective on the Effective Date. 
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ATTEST: 

Name: 
Title: 	,City Secretary 

di/1101110 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY 

LAOBy: 
Nam tagiffirin 
Title. 	MAGI 0 
Date:  1Pßil /5i  z9e9 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY: 

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL 

This instrument was acknoWledged Were rne , on 
W\cL.W) 	\c)-1,  

behalf of said city. 

gregh STEPHANIE MODISETTE 
z•..-4, • 	• °S. Notary Public, State of Texas 

My Commission Expires 	
Notary ublic, State of Texas 

December 22, 2009 
•••••memagg• 
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OWNER: 

PARKER CREEK ESTATES, L.P., 
a Texas limited partnership 

By: 	Bellaire Oaks, Inc., 
a Texas corporation 

Its: 	General Partner 

51 

By: 

Name Printed:  16//Yri La-4'g 

Title:  /42Gt7e( 	11- °9  

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OFEMICI 6  

's instru nem was acknowledged before me on 	 , 2009 by 
of Bellaire Oaks, Inc., a Texas comoration, m iqs capacity as General 

Partner of Parker Crc Estates, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said corporation, 
on behalf of said limited partnership. 

ary 	ublie, State of Texas 

DEBRAMEERS 
E. 	MY COMMISSION p(PIRES 

Juty31, 2012 
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Its: -win:tent, Board of 
e. 

Date: 

irectp 

DEBRA PEERS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

July 31, 2012 

'A'it_o  
tak Public, Sirve cf Texa. 

Printed Name:  ve...10_, flefr  
My Commission Expires:  r"I-3 	taa 

PARICER CREEK MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT OF P e 9C31ALL 1,, NTY 
By: 
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STATE OF TE(fl  
COUNTY OF Da. ko)  

T 's instrurnen vm,ocknowledged before me, on the (X) c 1 ay of  rn 	, 2008, 
!Vat-dent of the Board of Directors of Parker Creek Muiifcipal Utility 

District of Rock vall C unty, on behalf of said f ntity. 

ea 

re-C,OroU/4), WW1& 

cr-tde, zs,44_61,0a. 

172_00 1) öttileis 13ve. ,sui-fe_ 300 

-FX 7S-5 
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RUTLEDGE CRAIN & COMPANY, PC 
	 60 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
2401 Garden Park Court, Suite B 

Arlington, Texas 76013 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

To the City Council 
City of Royse City, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fuild, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Royse City, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial Statements, which collectivelli comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparatión and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
With accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
iniplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preParation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to ekpress opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entitY's preparation and fair preSentation -of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenesS of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates rnade by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial stateinents referred to above present fairly, in all material respedts, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type actiyities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component unit, eabh major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Royse City, Texas, 
as of September' 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with acCounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Amounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the manageMent's 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the Citys proportionate share of the net 
pensiOn liability, and schedule of City pension contributions identified as Required Supplementary Information in 
the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
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part of the basic financial statements, is -required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. .We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express ari opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence td express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Royse City, Texas basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual niinmajor fund financial statements and Šchedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting, and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themseives, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

- 

March 21, 2017 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

As management of the City of Royse City (Title), we bffer the readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2016. We encourage readers to read the infórmation presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets and deferred resources ouffiows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
rešourCes inflowš at the close of the fiscal year by $22,355,347 (net position). Of this amount, 
$4,219,513 (unrestricted net positiOn) may be used to meet the governments ongoing obligations 
to citizens and creditors. A tõtal of $12,117,918, or 54% of total net position, is invested in capital 
assets which does not directly generate revenue and is not available to generate liquid capital, 
Net position reStricted for specific purposes totals $6,017,916 or 27% of total net position. 

• The Citys total net position increased by $8,583,435 largely due to the net investenent in capital 
assets related to developer contributions. Impact fees associated with the growth continue to 
positively affect net position. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's govemmental funds reported combined ehding 
fund balance of $5,452,165, an increase of $2,597,465 or 91%, in comparison with the prior year. 
The increase in combined ending fund balances is primarily attributable to bond proceeds ($1.96 
million) and growth in general revenues (property and sales taxes, franchise fees). 
Approximately 35% of total fund balance, or $1,923,068, Is available for spending at the City's 
discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
s1 ,923,068 or 29% of total General Fund expenditures. The increase in the total General Fund 
balance is largely due to increased revenues in growth related categorieS suCh as property tax, 
sales tax, permit collections and franchise fees combined with conservative spending across 
departments. 

▪ The City's total long-term debt increašed by $1,325,183, or 6% during the current fiscal year 

Overview of Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
staternents. The Citys basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) govemment-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic 
financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of goVernment-Wide 
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report 
contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial 
condition of the City. 
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CITY OF ROYSE ary, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements (pages 19-21) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City's financial 
status. 

The next statements (pages 22-28) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the 
acrivities of the individual parts of the Citys government. These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements. There are two parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental 
fund statements and 2) the proprietary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes (beginning on page 29). The notes to the 
financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, 
required supplemental information (page 53) is provided to šhow budgetary information for the General 
Fund, and to provide details about the funding progress and contribution for the pension plan, 
Supplemental Information (pages 59-84) is also included to provide combining non-major fund financial 
statements and budgetary comparisons. 

GovernMent-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to proVide the reader with a broad overview of 
the Citys finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The 
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial status as 
a whole, 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the two reported aa net päsition. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Citys net positioh changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event gMng 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses 
are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave). 

Both the government-wide statements are divided into three-  categories: 1) governmental activities: 2) 
business-type activities; and 3) component unit. The governmental activities include most of the City's 
basic services such as public safety, public services, parks and recreation, and general administration. 
Property taxes, sales taxes and franchise fees finance most of these activities. The buaineaa-type 
activities are those 'that the City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of 
certain services it provides. The City's water and sewer system activitY are reported as business-type 
activities. The final category is the component unit. The City includes one separate legal entity in its 
report — the Royse City Community Development Corporation. Although legally separate, this 
"component unir is important because the City is finandiaily accountable for them. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 19-21 of this report. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Citys most significant funds. A fund is 
a self-balancing set of accounts that is used to ' maintain control over reiources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectiVes. Some funds are required to be established by state law 
and by bcnd covenants. HoweVer, the City Council establishes rnany other funds tõ help it control and 
manage funds for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain 
taxes, grants, and other money. The City of Rolise City, like other state and local govemments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance with finance-related legal requirements, such as the 
General Statutes or the Citys bUdget ordinance. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two 
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Citys basic services are 
accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can be readily converted into 
cash flow in and out, and what rnonies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next 
year. GovernMental funds are reported using an adcounting Method called modified accrtial accounting 
which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result,,  the governmental fund financial statements give 
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial 
resources available to finance the Citys programs. The relationship between governmental activities 
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and gcwernrnental funds is 
described in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements. 

Because the foCus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
staternents, it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in government-Wide financial statements. By doing so, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decitions. 
Bdith the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City adopts an' annual budget for its General Fund and Debt Service Fund, as required by ,the 
General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of 
the,City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Council about which serviceš to provide 
and how to bay,  for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance 
these current period activities. The budgetary schedule provided for the General Fund demonstrates how 
well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing the 
services as , planned when the budget was adopted. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the 
General Fund uses the modified accrual basis of accounting and is presented using the same 'format, 
language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The schedule shows four columns: 1) 
original budget; 2) the final budget as amended by the Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriaticins, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the 
final budget and the actual resources and charges. The Governmental Fund financial statements can be 
found on pages 22-25 of this report. The General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule can be found 
on page 55. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Proprietary Funds — The City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside 
Customers or to other units within the City. These services are generally reported in the proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the Citys proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail, such as cash flows. 

The City of Royse City maintains one individual proprietary fund: the Water and Sewer Fund. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report 

Notes to the Financial Statements = The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-WIde and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements start on page 29 of this report. 

Required Supplemental Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and 'accompanying 
notes, this report presents certain required supplementary information concerning the progress in funding 
its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. This information begins on page 56 of this 
report 

The combining staternents and budgetary comparison schedules for the nonmajor governmental funds 
can be found on pages 59-84 of this report. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governments financial 
position. The Citys combined net position was $22,355,347 as of September 30, 2016, This analysis 
focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Citys governmental and 
business-type activities. 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Deferred retources outflows 

Current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Deferred resources inflows 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
UnrestriCted 

Total Net Position 

Governmental 
Activities 

Table 1 

Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

56,403,070 

12,886,408 

53,692,320 

10,101,042 

$6,504,264 

20.694,423 

54,728,626 

17,315,863 

$12,907,334 

33,580,831 

$8,420,946 

27,416,905 

19,289,478 13,793,362 27,198,687 22,044,489 46,488,165 35,837,851 

665,650 320,598 123,577 41,312 789,227 361,910 

717,980 

10,456,348 

594,547 

8,377,721 

570.267 

13,236,513 

564,082 

13,368,165 

1.288,247 

23,69Z 861 

1,158,629 

21,745,886 
11,174,328 8,972,268 13,806,780 13,932,247 24,981,108 22,904,515 

10,033 20,136 10,033 20,136 

3,810,266 

3,233,268 
1,727,233 

2,556,883 

1,565,583 
999,090 

8,307,652 

2,784,648 
2,492,280 

4,322,435 

1,622,952 
2,704,969 

12,117,918 

6,017,916 
4,219,513 

6,879,318 

3,188,535 
3,704,059 

58,770,767 55,121,556 513,584,580 $8,650,356 522,355,347 $13,771,912 

Fifty-one percent (54%) of the Citys net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The City uses these Capital assets to provide serviceS to citizens; consequently; these 
assets are not available for future spending.. Although the city.s investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be rioted that the resoueces needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net position (27%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $4,219,513 or 
19% may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citiienS and creditors. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $3,649,211. Key elements of this increase 
are as foliows in Table 2. 

Revenues. 
Program Revenues: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Table 2 
Change In Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Charges for services 2,254,454 2,249,674 5,303,062 5,276,591 7,557516 7,526265 
Operating grants and contributions 53,516 73,889 53,516 73,889 
Capital grants and contributions 2,168,722 1,595 4,417,902 6586,624 1,595 

General Revenues, 
Proper1y1a*s 3,910,721 3,480,297 3,910,721 3,480297 
Sales tams 1,746,482 1,503,191 1,746,482 1,503,191 
Franthise taxes 481,039 429,083 481,039 429,083 
Hotel/A/tote! taxes 103,989 80,254 103,989 80,254 
Beverage taxes 4,372 3,879 4,372 3,879 
Imestment income 37,921 9,374 14,896 2083, 52,817 12,057 
Gain on sale of capital asset - - 10,600 - 10,600 
Mscellaneous 55200 219,226 81,738 93,937 136,938 313,163 

Total Revenues 10,816416 8,050,462 9,817,598 5,383,811 20,634,014 13,434,273 

Expenses 
Program Expenses 

General govemment 2,679,765 2,749,735 2,679,765 2,749,735 
Public safety 2,352,566 2,356,569 2,352,566 2,356,569 
Public works 500,534 379,893 500,534 379593 
Public sell/ices 662,653 588,013 682553 588,013 
Community development 484,683 427,320 484,683 427,320 
Culture and recreation 219,380 206,503 219,380 206,503 
Environmental senices 164,078 167,586 164,078 167,586 
Interest on long-term debt 823,546 353,810 - 823,546 353,810 
Water and sewer - 4,163,374 4,011,101 4,163574 4,011,101 

Total Evenses 7,887,205 7,229,429 4,163,374 4,011,101 12,050,579 11,240,530 

Change in net position 
before transfers 2,929,211 821,033 5554224 1572,710 8,583,435 2,193,743 

Transfers 720,000 236,020 (720,000) (236,020) 
Total change In net position 3,649,211 1,057,053 4,934,224 1,136,690 8,583,435 2,193,743 

Net position - October 1 5,121,556 4530,137 8,650,356 7,211,003 13,771,912 11,841,140 
Prior Period Pdjustrnents (565,634) 302,663 (262,971) 
Net position - Septernber30 8,770,767 5,121,556 13,584,580 8,650,356 22,355,347 13,771,912 

10 

6 9 



Franchise taxes 	 Other/Misc 
4% 	 2% harges for 

services 
21% 

3,000,000 
2500,000 
2,000,000 
1,500,000 
1,000,000 

506,000 
• 

iv
a

w
u

i a
no

 

GI 

-0 

Di 

o
p

oN
t  D

llc
i n

d
  

sa
,v u

as
  3!

Ic
I n

d 

FY 2015 

FY 2016 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities 

Program Expenses — Govemmental Activities 

Prograrn revenues were $4.47 million, compared to $2.3 million in fiscal year 2015. The breakdown of 
the increase is as follows: 

• Overall, charges for services were relatively flat, increasing $4,780. 
• Operating grants and contributions decreased $20,373 and capital grants and contributions 

increased $2.16 million due to developer contributions 
• General revenues increased from $5,961,324 in fiscal year 2015 to $7,059,724 in fiscal year 2016 

due to increased sales tax receipts and property tax shift from debt to operating. 

Overall, governmental activities expenses were $7.89 million, an increase of $657,776 which is 
attributable primarily to street repairs and interest paid on debt service. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues of the City's business-type activities were $9.82 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2016. Revenues increased approximately $4.4 million or 82% as compared to the prior fiscal year. 
Expenses for the City's business-type increased $152,373. The increase in net position is a result of the 
completion & dedication of developer installed infrastructure. 

Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities 

Expenditures — Business-Type Activities 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds —.The focus of the Citys governmental funds is to provide information on near.-
term infloWs, outflows and balances of sliendable resources. Such information is useful in aseessing the 
City's financing requirements. In particular, unrestilcted fund balances (unassigned, assigned and 
committed) may eerve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending in the 
next fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $5,452,165. Within this total,- $3,480,266 is restricted for specific legal requirements, such as 
debt covenants, and $48,831 ha§ been committed and assigned to specific types of expenditures. 
Unassigned fund balance Is $1,923,068 and can be used for any lawful purpose. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The fund balance of the City's general fund 
increased by $907,570 during the current fiscal year. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may 
be useful to compare the unassigned fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Unassigned fund 
balance represents 29% of total general fund expenditures. 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $878,728, all of which is restricted for the payment of 
debt service. 

Proprietary Funds — The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial steternents, but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the proprietary fund 
at the end of the fiscal year were $2,492,280, compared to $2,704,968 in the prior year. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital.Assets — At the end of the fiscal year 2016, the City had $336 million (net of accumulated 
depreciation) invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, police and fire 
equipment, park facilities, roads and water and sewer lines (Table 3). This amOunt represents a net 
increase (including additions and deletions) of $6.1 million over the prior fiscal year. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include road and waterline Construction, -developer 
contributions, parks and public works equiprnent. 

Table 3 

Capital Assets at Year-End 

(net of accumulated depreciation) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Land 925,169 925,170 1,340,132 1,340,132 2,265,301 2,265,302 

Construction in progress 673282 250,897 9,769 924,179 9,769 

Buildings and impro*rnents 10,584,305 8,619385 3,592 4,658 10,587,897 8,624,043 

Machinery and equipment 703,652 556,487 67,625 78,328 771277 634,815 

Infrastructure 19,032,177 15,882,976 19,032,177 15,882,976 

TOtal 12,886,408 10,10'1,042 20,694,423 17,315,863 33,580,831 27,416,905 

Mom detailed information about the Citys capital asset activity is present in Note 111.0. to the financial 
statements. 

Long-Term Debt — At year end, the City had $22 million in long-term debt outstanding, a 61,3 million, or 
6.4% increase in comparison with the prior year — as shown in Table 4. 

Table d 

Outstanding Debt at Year-End 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2015 2015 

General obligation bonds $0 $7,000 S4,385,000 $4,810,000 $4,385,000 54,817,001 

Certificates of obligation 8,940,000 7,500,000 8,520,000 8,380,000 17,46-000 15,880,000 

Unamortized prem ium (discount) 20,425 (64,525) 33,004 2,019 53,429 (62,506) 

Capital lease 115.717 42,672 . 	50,927 62,724 . 166,644 105,196 

Total $9,076,142 $7,485,147 $12,988,931 $13,254,743 _$22,065,073 $20,739,890 

During fiscal year 2016, the City issued $2.49 million of certificates of obligation to provide funding for a 
downtown street reconstruction project, water line replacement, participation on a TxDOT overpass 
project and public works equipment 

More detailed information about the City's long-term obligations is presented in Note lll.F. to the financial 
statements. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIDN AND ANALYSIS (continued) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Economic Factors and Next Yeart Budgets and Rates 

The completion of a major interchange along Interstate 30 and the opening of Wal-Mart has spurred retail 
development in the adjacent areas. Whataburger, Dairy Queen,,  O'Reilly's Auto Parts and Murphy Oil are 
among several businesses that opened late 2016/early fiscal 2017. Tractor Supply Company will be a 
new addition and a number of lots surrounding their expansion are anticipated to deVelop in the coming 
year. Another of the City's interstate bridge reconstruction projects was approved for TxDOT funding 
and will begin Spring 2017. Buc-ee's will build a 50,000 sqUare foot travel center on the southwest corner 
of this intersection. An exciting addition to the area and anchor to an anticipated entertaininent district, an 
independent minor-league baseball program announced the construction of a 2000, 	Stadium to house a 
Royse City based team on property at this same intersection. 

Residential development remains strong; with Union Square (a 500-lot subdivision) opening its first 
phases in 2017 and a 1,025 lot subdivision (Waterscape) beginning construction late 2016, and while in 
the ETJ will pay for police and fire services per its development agreernent. A 220-unit apartment 
complex will be completed during fiscal 2017 and a rural, large lot development broke ground which will 
extend water service to the eastern city limits opening a large area for future growth as Well. 

Royse City has enjoyed a thriving downtown for several years; where the small town community and 
relationships are fostered and maintained — a true illustration of "A Friendly Touch of Texas." Royse City 
is a designated Texas Main Street City and is recognized as a nationally accredited program. A number 
of small businesses and restaurant make Main Street home. New additions in fiscal 2017 will include two 
boutiques and a brewery. 

The largeet single revenue source in the fisdal year 2017 General Fund Budget is property taxes, which 
account for 39.5% of total revenues. Assessed property values in Royse City increased $91 million from 
the prior year, including $42 rnillion in new property entering the tax roll for the first time Council 
maintained the $0.6771 per $100 valuation tax rate for fiscal year 2017. Sales tax revenue remains the 
City's second largest revenue source, making up 23% of General Fund Revenues. A modest 5% 
increase in sales tax revenue is projected as the retail base normalizes. A Police investigator and 
Planner were added in the FY17 budget as well as additional funding for street repairs. The 
comprehensive 'Dian update will conclude in fiscal year 2017 providing guidance for the future growth of 
Royse City. 

Water/Sewer Fund expenditures are projected to increase 7% in fiscal year 2017 primarily due to 
continued increases in water purchase and wastewater treatment costs from our provider North Texas 
Municipal Water District (NTMWD). This increase in the water rate is to pay for debt service associated 
with capital improvements of aging infrastructure related to NTMWD's water treatment operations, as well 
as establishing future water supplies to meet the growing regional demand. Additionally, NTMWD will 
begin the expansion of a shared wastewater treatment facility in Royse City. To address the increases 
from NTMWD and capital needs of our system, water and wastewater rates will be indreased accordingly. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with 
a general overview of the Citys finances and to show the Citys accountability for the money it receives. 
Questions about this report or requests for additional financial information šhould be directed to the 
Finance Director, P.O. Box 638, Royse City, Texas 75189. 
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EXHIBIT A-1 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

ASSETS 

Prirnary Government 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-lype 	- 

Activities 	Total 
Component 

Unit 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	5,652,672 $ 	1,847,349 $ 	7,500,021 $ 	1,612,520 
Receivables(net of allowances for uncollectibles) 523,207 1,158,071 1,681,278 
Internal balances (115,250) 115,250 
Due from othergovernments 342,441 342,441 114,147 
Due from component unit 51,230 51,230 
Res1ricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,332,364 3,232,364 
'Capital assets (riet of accumulated depreciation) 

Land 925,169 1,340,132 2,265,301 
Buildings and system 10,584,305 3,592 10,587,897 
Machinery and equipment 703,652 67,625 771,277 
Infrastructure 19,032,177 19,032,177 
Construction in progress 673,282 250,897 924,179 

Total Asets 19,289,478 27,198,687 46,488,165 1,726,667 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Pension plan expense 665,650 123,577 789,227 38,435 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 665,650 123,577 789,227 38,435 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 562,933 103,110 666,043 7,112 
Accrued interest payable 56,362 69,090 125,458 
Due to other governrnents 98,685 98,685 
Due to primary govemment 51,230 
Customer deposits 398,061 398,061 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Nondurrent 

Due within one year 720,488 935,147 1,655,635 
Due In more than one year 9,735,860 12,301,366 22,037,226 7j,419 
Total Liabilities 11,174,328 13,806,780 -24,981,108 131,761 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue-other 10,033 10,033 

Total deferred inflows of resources 1 0.033 10,033 

NET POSITION: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3.810,266 8,307,652 12,117,918 
Restricted For: 

Debt Service 950,375 950,375 
Capital Projects 1.190.006 680.208 1.870.214 
Impact fees 1,092,887 2,104,440 3,197,327 

Unrestricted 1,727,233 2,492,280 4,219,513 1,633,341 
Total Net Position 8,770,767 $ 	13,584,580 $ 	22 355 347 1,633,341  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Functions/Programs Evenses 

Program Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

Operating 	Capital 
Grants and 	Grants and 

Contributions 	Contributions 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 
Governmental Activities; 

General govemment 2,679,765 $ 	877,258 $ 	29.733 $ 
Public safety.  2,352,566 457,474 10,854 
Public works 500,534 355,869 8,695 2,168,722 
Public services 662,653 2,269 
Community development 484,683 534,526 — 
Culture and recreation 219,380 27,058 585 
Environmental services 164,078 — 3,649 
Interest 823,546 — -- 
Total governmental activities 7,887,205 2,254,454 53,516 2,168,722 

Business-type Activities: 
Water and Sewer 4,163,374 5.303,062 — 4,417,902 
Total Business-type Activities 4,163,374 , 5,303,062 — 4,417,902 
Total Primary Government $ 	12,050 579 $ 	7,557.516 $ 	53,516 $ 	6,586,624 

COMPONENT UNIT: 
Royse City Comrnunity Development Corporation 227,286 $ $ 

General Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and Interest 
Sales Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 
Hotel Motel Taxes 
Alcoholic Beverage Taxes 
Miscellaneous 
Unrestricted 1nVestment Earnings 

Transfers 
Total General Revenues and Transfers 
Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 
Net Position - Ending 

7 9 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHISIT A-2 
	80 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

Component 
Unit 

$ 	(1,772,774) $ 	(1,772,774) 
(1,884,238) (1,884,238) 
2,032,752 2,032,752 
(660,384) (660,384) 

49,843 49,843 
(191,737) (191,737) 
(160,429) (160,429) 
(823,546) (823,546) 

(3,410,513) (3,410,513) 

$ 	5,557,590 5,557,590 
5,557,590 5,557,590 

(3,410,513) 5,557,590 2,147,077 

$ 	(227,286) 

3,910,721 3,910,721 
1,746,482 1,746,482 618,309 

481,039 - 481,039 - 
103,989 103,989 

4,372 -- 4,372 - 
55,200 81,738 136,938 1,631 
37,921 14,896 52,817 3,598 

720,000 (720,000) - - 
7,059,724 (623,366) 6,436,3R 623,538 
3,649,211 4,934,224 8,583,435 396,252 
5,121,556 8,650,356 13,771,912 1,237,089 

$ 	8,770,767 $ 	13,584,580 $ 	22,355,347 $ 	1,633,341 
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EXHIBIT A.3 
CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

ASSETS 

General 
Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Govemmental 

Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents 	 • $ 	1,987,038 $ 	896,237 $ 	2,769,398 $ 	5,652,673 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes - delinquent 88,812 76,125 164,937 
Fines 193,364 193,364 
Other receivables 134,632 30,274 164,906 

Due from other funds 21,987 21,987 
Due from other governments 342,441 342,441 

Total Assets 2,768,274 972,362 2,799,672 6,540,308 

LIABILmEs 
Acceunts payable 383,302 $ 32,932 $ 	416,234 
Accrued liabilities 11,628 11,828 
Other liabilities 133,950 1,121 135,071 
Due te other funds 21,987 115,250 137,237 
Due to other governments 98,685 98,685 

Total Liabilities 627565 21,987 149,303 798,855 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 82,590 71,647 154,237 
Unavailable revenue-fines 125,018 125,018 
Unavailable revenue-other 10,033 10,033 

Total deferred inflows of resources 217,641 71,647 289,288 

Fund balances: 
Restricted 878,728 2,601,538 3,480,266 
Assigned 48,831 48,831 
Unassigned 1,923,068 1,923,068 

Total fund balances 1,923,068 878,728 2,650,369 5,452,165 
Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflows 

of Resources and Fund Balances $ 	2,768,274 $ 	972,362 $ 2,799,672 $ 	6,540,308 

81 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis staternent. 
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EXHIBIT A4 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet 	 $ 	5,452,165 

Amounts reported for govemrnental adtivities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 	 12,888,408 
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 	 154,237 
Payables for bond principal which are not due in -the current period are not reported In the funds. 	 (8,960,425) 
Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the kinds. 	 (115,717) 
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 	 (56,362) 
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 	(108,695) 
Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 	 125,016 
Recognition of the Citys Proportionate share of the net pension liability iS not reported in the funds. 	 (1,271,512) 
Deferred Resource Outflows related to the pension plan are not reported in the funds. 	 665,650 

Net position of governmental activities - Staternent of Net Position 	 $ 	8,770,767  

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ot this statement. 

23 



83 
EXHIBIT A-5 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIEVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Revenues: 

'General 
Fund 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

• Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest $ 	2,486,233 $ 	1,422,309 $ $ 	3,908,542 
Sales 1,746,482 - - 1,746,482 
Franchise 481,039 - 481,039 
Hotel motel tax - - 103,989 103,989 
Beverage 5,292 - - 5,292 
Fines and fees 234,848 - 15,489 250,337 
Licenses and permits 354,498 - - 354,498 
Charges for services 1,172.582 - 1,059 1,173,641 
Impact fees - 342,744 342,744 
Intergovernmental 115,821 ,.: 115,821 
Donations - - 53,738 53,738 
Interest income 21,399 6,789 9,734 37,922 
Miscellaneous 58,946 - _ 58,946 
Total revenues 6,677,140 1,429,098 526,753 8,632,991 

Expenditure's: 
Current: 

General government 2,503,525 - 84,539 2,588,064 
Public safety 2,215,890 - 2,215,890 
Public works 315,793 - 8,535 324,328 
Public services 610,348 - --- 610,348 
Community development 496,128 - 496.128 
Culture and recreation ' 201,643 - 353 201,996 
Environmental servlces 162,807 - - 162,807 

Total current 6,500,134 -  93,427 0,599,501 

Capital outlay: 
General government - 65,423 65,423 
Public safe0i 113,312 - -- 113,312 
Public works -- - 778,505 778,505 
Public services 6,435 - 6,435 
Community development 20,443 „. 20,443 
Environmental seMces 20,443 - 7,838 28,281 

Total caPital outlay 160,633 - 851,766 1,012,399 

Debt service: 
Principal 716,000 716,000 
Interest 548,399 - 548,399 
Bond Issuance cost - - 41,147 41,147 

Total debt service 1,264,399 41,147 1,305,546 

Total expenditures 	 • 6,666,767 1,264,399 986,340 8,917,506 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditure 10,373 164,699 (459,587) (284,515) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 743,000 .. 743,000 
Transfers out - - (23,000) (23,000) 
Issuance of long-term debt 3,779 1,911,221 1,915,000 
Premium on bonds issued - 92,783 92,783 
Capital leases 154,197 - 154,197 
Total other financing soumes (uses) 897,197 3,779 1,981,004 2,881,980 

Net change in fund balances 907,570 168,478 1,521,417 2,597,465 

Fund balances, October 1 1,015,498 710,250 1,128,952 2,854,700 
Fund balances, September 30 $ 	1,923,068 $ 	878,728 $ 	2,650,369 $ 	5,452,165 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-6 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Net change in fund balances - total governrnental funds 	 $ 	2,597,465 

Amounts reported for goVernmental activities in the Staternent of Activities 
("SON) are different because: 

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 	 ' 1,012,397 
The depreciation of capital assets ušeci in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. 	 (395,753) 
Donations of capital assets increase net position in the SOA but not in the funds. 	 2,168,722 
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This Is the change in these amounts this year. 	 ' 2,180 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an eipense In the SOA. 	 482,000 
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure In'the funds latit Is not an expense in the SOA. 	 81,162 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest frorn beginning of period to end 'of period. 	 (6,916) 
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned In the SOA but as the arnount paid in the funds. 	(1,030) 
Revenues in the SOA for court fines not providing current financial resources are not reported in the funds. 	12,525 
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. 	(1,915,000) 
Bond premiums are reported In the funds but not in the SOA. 	 (92,783) 
Proceeds of leases do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources In the funds. 	(164,197) 
Pension expense relating to GASB 68 is recorded in the SOA but not in the funds. 	 (141,550) 

Change in net positien of governmental activities - Statement of Activities 	 $ 	3,649,212 

8 4 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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85 
EXHIBIT A-1 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30. 2016 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Enterprise 
Fund 

ater 
and Sewer 

Fund 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,847,349 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles). 1,158,071 
Due from other funds 115.250 
Due from component unit 51,230 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,332,364 

Total Current Assets 6,504,264- 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Land 1,340,132 
Buildings 39,551 
Machinery and Equipment 537,136 
Infrastructure 23,740,262 
Construction in Progress 250,897 

Less Accumulated Depreciation a5,,213,6551 
Total Noncurrent Assets 20,694,423 
Total Assets 27,198,687  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred pension plan expense 123,577 

Total Outflows of Resources 123,577 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 23,990 
Other liabilities 10,024 
Compensated absences payable - current 1,153 
Accrued interest payable 69,096 
Certificates of obligation - current 262,500 
Revenue bonds payable - current 217,252 
Capital leases payable 12,082 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Customer Deposits 398,061 
Total Current Liabilities 994,158 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
General Obligation Bonds Payable 4,473,643 
Certificates of 'obligation 4,904,339 
Revenue Bonds Payable 3,080,269 

Compensated absences payable - noncurrent 10,375 
Capital Leases Payable 38,845 
Net Pension Obligation 236,055 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 12,743,526 
Total Liabilities 13,737,684 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capita/ Assets 8,307.652 
Restricted for Capital Projects 680,208 
Restricted for impact lee use 2,104,440 
Unrestricted 2,492,280 

Total Net Position $ 	13,584,585' 

The accompanying notes aro an integral part of this statement. 
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8 6 
EXHIBIT A-8 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET POSITION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Enterprise 
Fund 
Water 

and Sewer 
Fund 

Charges for services - water $ 	2,953,551 
Charges for sertrices • sewer 2,205,473 
Water and wastewater impact fees 516,400 
Miscellaneous 225,776 

Total Operating Revenues 5,901,200 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Personal services 521,291 
Matedals and supplies 71,249 
Repairs and maintenance 266,846 
Water purchases 1,047,417 
Contractual servkes 208,802 
Interceptor expenses 1,164,079 
Depreciation 559,071 

Total OPerating Expenses 3,838,755 
Operating Income 2,062,445 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
interest revenue 14,896 
Interest expense (312,189) 
Bond issuance costs (12,430) 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (?_09,723) 

Incorne before Transfers 1,752,722 

Capital contnbutions 3,901,502 
Transfers out (720,000) 

Change in Net Position 4,934,224 

Total Net Position - Beginning 8,650,356 
Total Net Position - Ending $ 	13,584,580 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement. 
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Ewer A.9 

CITY OF ROYSE CITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Enterprise 
Fund 
Water 

and Sewer 
Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activitiei: 
Cash Received from Customers 	 $ 5,535,649 
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 	 (465,106) 
Cash Payments to Other Suppliera for Goods and Services 	 (2,758,393) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 	 2,312,150  

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities: 
Advances to other funds 	 (115,250) 
Advances to component unit 	 (51,230) 
Transfers From (To) Other Funds 	 (720,000) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities 	 (886,480) • 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Proceeds from bonds 	 575,000 
Principal and Interest Paid 	 (1,264,006) 
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets 	 (36,129)  

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities 	 (725,135) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
interest and Dividends on Thvestments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 
14,896 
14,896 

  

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 	 715,431 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 	 4,464,282 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 	 S 5,179,713 

Reported oh Staternent of Net Position 
Unrestricted cash 	 $ 1,847,349 
Restricted cash 	 3,332,364 

$ 5,179,713 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Not Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating indome (Loss) 	 $ 2,662,445 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation 	 559,071 

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 	 (396,928) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 	 (92,044) 
Increase (Decrease) in Other Payables 	 (3.678) 
Increase (Decrease) in &trued Expenses 	 16,995 
Increase (Decrease) in Customer DepoSits 	 31,375 
Increase (Decrease) in Pension Liability 	 134,912  

Total Adjustments 	 249,705  
Net Cash PrOvided (Used) by Operating Activities 	 2,312,150  

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities: 
Contribution of capital assets 	 $  3,901,502 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

I. 	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Royse City, Texas, was settled in 1891 and operates under the Council-Manager form of govemrnent 
as adopted by a home rule charter approved May 15, 2004. The City provides a full range of municipal services 
including public safety (police and fire), municipal court, parks and recreation, health and social services, 
planning and zoning, and general administrative services. ln addition, the City provides water and sewer service 
as a proprietary function of the City. 

The accounting policies of the City of Royse City, Texas, conform to generally accepted accounting principles 
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which is the recognized financial accounting standard 
setting body for governmental entities. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City's 
basic financial statements. 

The City of Royse City is a home rule municipality governed by an elected mayor and six member City Council 
who appoint a City Manager. The city s (prirnary government) financial statements include its component units. 
The accompanying basic financial statements comply with the provisions of the GASB'Statement No. 14, "The 
Financial Reporting Entity: as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, 'Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units", in that the financial statements include all oroanizations, activities, 
functions and component units for which the City (the "primary government") is financially accountable. Financial 
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of a legally separate organization's governing 
body and either (1) the Citys ability to impose its will over the organization, or (2) the potential that the 
organization will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The Royse City Community Development Corporation (CDC") is a discretely presented component unit of the 
City. The CDC is govemed by a board of seven rnembers, all of whom are appointed by the City Council of the 
City of Royse City and whom can be removed from office by the City Council at its will. CDC has potential for 
the organization to provide specific financial benefitš to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City. The 
CDC incorporated in the state of Texas in 1998. The nature and significance of the relationship between the 
primary govemment and the CDC is such that exclusion would cause the Citys financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. Stand alone financial statements for CDC as of and for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2016 are not prepared. 

• 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of changes in 
net position) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component 
units. For the Mostpart, the effect of interfund activity has been remoVed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the 
primary government is reported sepa rately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly Identifiable with a specific function 
or segment. Program revenues include_ 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items notTroperly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate financial statements aie provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the govemment-wide financial statements. Major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

C. 	Measurement Focus, Basis ot Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statementa. Revenues 
are redorded when earned and expenses are regarded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues In the year for which they are levied. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as reventie as soon as all eligibility requiraments imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and avaitable. Revenues are considered to be availabie when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to 
be available if they are colleated within 60 clays of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual aCcounting. However, debt service expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible 
to accrual as revenue of the cument period, All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Citys primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required (o be accounted for in another fund. 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term general obligation debt of govemmental funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Water and Sewer Fund operates the water distribution system and the wastewater treatment plants, 
wastewater pumping stations, and collection systems. 

Additionally, the City reports the following furid types: 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures far 
specified purpoSes (not including eXpendable trusts or major capital projects). 

The Capital Projects Fund was established to account for, resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of general major capital facilities. Financing is provided primarily by the sale of general 
obligation bonds. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are 
followed In both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statementa to the extent that those 
standards do not cinflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent 
private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this generatrule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the Citys 
water and wastewater function and various other functions of the City. Elirnination of these charges would distort 
the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concemed. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1).charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

special assessinents. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, miscellaneous revenue, and interest income, 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from noniverating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Sewer 
enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The enterprise utility fund also recognizes as 
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition ere 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

0, Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity 

1. Deposits and investments 

The City rnaintains various accounts for each fund at its depository. The City also has cash maihtained by 
agents for debt payments and reserves, and construction reserves. For purposes of the statemenfof cash 
flows, the City 'considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less 
to be cash equivalents. 

The City investment pitilicy authorizes the Directorof Finance to invest in the following types of investments: 

a. Obligations of the United States or its'agencies and instrumentalities With finite MatUrity dates, with a 
maximum maturity of not greater than 5 years. Laddering of investments should be considered. 

b. Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities, with stated finite maturity 
dates. 

c. Other obligations, with finite maturity dates, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies or 
instrumentalities. 

d. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state having been 
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm and having received 
a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent. 

e_ 	Certificates of deposit issued by a state or national bank domiciled in the state of Texas or a savings 
bank domiciled in the State of Texas provided that they are: 

(1) Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor, 

(2) Secured by obligations outlined in items a — d. The market value of all collateral must be marked 
to market on a daily basis and shall not be less than 102% of the principal amount of the certificate 
plus accrued interest, or 

(3) Secured in any other manner in an amount provided by law for deposits of the City. 

f. Repurchase agreements which are fully collateralized by obligations of the United States or its 
agencies and instrumentalities, marked to market on a daily basis with a market value of at least of the 
102% of the principal invested, including accrued interest. The securities being purchased rnust be 
pledged to the City end held in the Citys name by a third party selected and approved by the City. The 
repurchase agreement' must have a defined termination date and be placed through a primary 
government securities dealer or a financial institution,  doing business in the state of Texas. The 
repurchase agreements should be secured by obligations approved in this policy. 

g. Banker's acceptances having a stated rnaturity of 270 days or less, to be liquidated in full afmaturily, 
which .are rated not less than "A-r or "P-1" (or an equivalent rating) by at least one nationally 
recognized credit rating agency provided that it is eligible for borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank. 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

n. 	commercial paper having a stated maturity of 270 clays or less and rated not less Man "A-1" or "P-1" 
(or an eqvivalent rating) by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies or one nationally 
recognized rating agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank 
Organized and existing under the laws of the United States. 

I. No-load money market mutual fund registered with and regulated by the SEC, which has a dollar-
weighted average stated maturity of 90 days orless. It must have included in its imrestrnent objectives 
its intent to maintain a stable net assets Value of $1 for each share. The fund must provide the City 
with a prospectus and other information required by the SEC. 

J. No-load mutual funds, registered with and re§ulated by the SEC, having weighted rnaturity of fess than 
two years, and which invests exclusively in investments approved by this policy. 

k. Investment pools which are approved by the City Council, provided they meet all the criteria for 
investment pools outlined in Chapter 2256, Texas Local Government Code, and maintain a continuous 
rating not lower than AAA or AAA-in (or an equivalent rating) from at least one nationally recognized 
rating service. 

Investments having a maturity of 1 year or more, wherr purchased, are stated at fair value. Short term 
investments are stated at cost or amortized cost. 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the current portion of inter fund 
loans) or "advances to/from other funde (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other 
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "dile to/from other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the govemmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are'offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are 
not expendable available financial resources, 

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade adcounts receivable fn excess 
of 60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles. 

Property taxes are levied on October 1 by the City based on the January 1 property values as assessed 
by the Rockwall, Collin, and Hunt County Central Appraisal Districts. Takes are due without penalty until 
,Jantiary 31, of the next catendar year. After January 31 the City has an enforceable lien with respect to 
both real and personal property. Under state law, property taxes levied on real property constitute a 
perpetual lien on the real prOperty which cannot be forgiven without specific approval of the State 
Legislature. Taxes applicable to personal property can be deemed uncollectible by the City. - 

3. Inventories and prepaid items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of goVernrnental 
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are redorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

4, 	Restricted assets 

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet 
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants, 

5. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess 
of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business::type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight 
line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class Years 

Buildings and improvements 7 - 30 
System infrastructure 20 - 40 
Vehicles 4 - 20 
Office Fumiture and equipment 5 
Machinery and equipment 10 

	

6. 	Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes repOrt a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, defenedouttlowsof resources, represents' 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
or resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government only has two items which qualify for 
reporting in this category. The first is the deferred 'Charge on refunding reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refOnding results from the difference in the carrying valye 
of refunded debt arid its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter Of the 
life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second deferred outflow of resources consists of the amoUnt of 
pension expense deferred to future periods based upon the implementation of GASB 68. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The govemment has two types of deferred inflows of 
resources, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this 
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two soUrces: property taxes and fines 
receivable. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the 
amounts become available. The second type of deferred inflow of resources la that associated with the 
implementation of GASB 68. 

7, Compensated absences 

It is the Citys policy to pay a separating employee with at least six months of continuous service unused 
vacation leave riot to exceed 80 hotirs. The rate of pay will be determined by the salary rate in effect at the 
time of separation. As such, there is an accrual at the close of the fiscal year end in the government-wide 
and proprietary fund financial statements for the amount In the government-wide financial statements and 
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-terrn obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or due to all 
employees as of September 30, 2016. No unused sick or holiday leave will be paid out upon termination 
of employment. 

	

8. 	Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligationa are reported as liabilities in the aPplicable govemmental 
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CITY OF ROYSE CITY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight 
line rnethod which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized 
over the term Of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, govemmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issUed is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, vihether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported is debt service expenditures. 

9. Fund equity 

Nonspendable Fund Balance Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in a spendable 
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained Intact 

Restricted Fund Balance - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints 
imposed by external providers, or imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by the City Council through legislation, resolution or ordinance, unless the City Council removes 
or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action used to commit the arnounts. 

Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts thet are constrained by the City Council, or the City Manager or Director 
of Finance, based upon delejation of this authority by the City Council, that are to be used for specific 
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - Amounts that are available for any purpose; these arnounts can be reported 
only in the City's General Fund. 

Fund balance amounts represent the nature of the net resources that are reported in a governmental fund. 
The City fund balance classifications include non-spendable resources, restricted, and non-restricted 
(committed, assigned arid unassigned) amounts. When the City incurs an expenditure and both restricted 
and unrestricted amounts are available, the City considers restricted amounts to have been spent first 
When the City incurs an expenditure for an unrestricted amount, committed amounts are reduced first, 
followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned arnounts for purposes in which any of those 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be Used. The City has not established a forrnal policy to set 
forth a minimum level for fund balances. 
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General 

Fund 

Debt 

Service 

Other 

Funds Total 

Fund Balances ‘ 

Restricted for: 

Debt service 	 $ 	— $878,728 $ 	-- $878,728 

Capital projects 	 — 1,190,007 1,190,007. 

Roadway fees — 1,092,887 1,092,887 

Police 	 — — 2,660 2,660 

Municipal court use 92,930 92,930 

Hotel motel use 	 — — 223,054 223,054 

878,728 2,601,538 3,480,266 

Assigned: — 

General government 	 — 16,160 16,160 

Library 	 — — 2,149 2,149 

Senior center 	 — — 1,853 1,853 

Parks and recreation 	 — — 186 186 

Public safety 	 — 13,703 13,703 

Animal Control 	 — — 14,780 14,780 

48,831 48,831 

Unassigned 	 1,923,068 1,923,068 

$1,923,068 $878,728 $2,650,369 $5,452,165 

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary informafion 

The City followS the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

2. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; 
howeVer, ani revisions that alter the tetal expénditures'of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 
Therefore the fund level Is the legal level of control. 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. The legally 
adopted budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund are 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. During 2016, indiVidual 
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations. Any budgeted amounts 
appropriated at fiscal year-end and not spent automatically lapse. 
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6, 	The City did riot adopt budgets for certain Special Revenue Funds. These unbudgeted Special Revenue 
Funds were as follows: 

Library Grant 
Library Donations 
AniMal Shelter New Building 

7. 	Capital Project funds, when present are not budgeted. Since project length financial plans' usually extend 
into two or more fiscal years, this makes comparisons confusing and misleading. 

B. 	Deficit fund equity 

There were no fund deficits at September 30, 2016. 

111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. 	Deposits and investments 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. At 
September 30, 2016, the Citys deposits were entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the City's name; as a result, the Citys deposits Were 
not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Investments 

At Septembei 30, 2010, the City had the rollowing investments which are considered cash equivalents: 

Fair 	Weighted Average 

Value 	Maturity (Days)  

Investment Type 

LOGIC 
	

$7,703,927 
	

45 

Cash 
	

4,740.978 

Total cash and cash equivalents 
	

$12,444,905 

Cash and cash equivalents are reported in the: 

Statement of net assets as follows: 

Governmental activities unrestricted 	$5,486,192 

Govemmental activities restricted 

Business-type activities unrestricted 	1,599.604 

Business-type activities restricted 	3.746.589 

Total City 

CDC Discrete Component Unit 

10,832,385 

1,612,520 

12,444,905 

  

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") (Government Code Chapter 2256) requires the City to have an 
independent auditor perform test procedures related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City 
is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act arid with local policies. 

Currently all of the City's investments are with Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC). 
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LOGIC Was organized in conformity - with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas 
Government Code, and operates under the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas 
Government Code. The Public Funds Investment Act allows eligible local governments, state agencies, and 
nonprofit corporations of the State of Texas to jointly invest their funds in permitted investments. 

LOGIC's governing body is a five-member Board of Directors comprised of employees, officers or elected 
officials of participant government entities or individuals who do not have a business relationship with LOGIC 
and are qualified tO advise it. A maximum of two advisory board members represent the Co-Administrators of 
LOGIC. 

In order to comply with the Public Funds Investment Act, all portfolios will maintain a AAAm or equivalent rating 
from at least one nationally recognized rating agency. Standard & Poor's currently rates LOGIC AAAm. 

The portfolio is managed by JPMorgan Investment Management, Inc. Day-to-day administration is performed 
by First Southwest Company and JPMorgan Investment Management, Inc. First Southwest provides distribution, 
administrative, participant support and marketing services. JPMorgan investment Management, Inc. or its 
affiliates provides management, custody and fund accounting seivices. A request for LOGIC's financial 
statements can be made at www,logic.org. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to Interest rate risk is by 
investing mainly in investment pools which purchase a combination of shorter term investments with an average 
maturity of less than 60 days thus reducing the interest rate risk, The City monitors the interest rate risk Inherent 
in its portfolio by rneasuring the weighted average maturity of its portfolio. The City has no specific limitations 
with reipect to this metric. 

As of September 30, 2016 the City did not invest in any securities which are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations. 

Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill Its obligation to the hOlder of the.  
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Presented above is the-minimum rating required by (where applicable) the Public Ftinds Investment 
Act, the City's investment policy, or;  debt agreements and the actual rating as of year end for each investment 
type. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, certificates of deposit and authorized pools, no more than 50% 
of the City's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or wtth a single financial institution. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
govemment will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an putside party. The cuštodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Consistent with the requirements of the Public 
Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of the City to require full collateralization of all City investments and funds 
on deposit with a depository bank, other than investments which are obligations of the U.S. government and its 
agencies and instrumentalities. 

As of September 30, 2016, the City deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance 
limits were fully collateralized. 
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B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end for the government's indivkival majorlunds and nonmajor, and proprietary funds, 
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Taxes receivable 

Fines receivable 

Allowance for uncollectibtes 

Accounts receivable 

Allowance for uncollectibles 

Net other receivables 

Other receivabtes 

General 
Debt 

Service 
Nonmajor 
and Other 

Total 
Govemmental 

Water and 
Sewer 

588,812 $76,125 $ 5164,937 

$276,709 

(83,345) 

5276,709 

(83,345) 

S 

$193,364 $ 5193.364 

$1,397,261 

(239,190) 

5 51 ,158,071 

$134,632 $ $30,274 $164,906 5 

C. Deferred/Unearned Revenue 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered 
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition 
in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the various components of deferred revenue and uneamed revenue reported in the governmental funds were 
as follows: 

Unavailable Uneamed 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $82,590 

Fines reCeivable (General Fund) 125,018 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (Debt Service Fund) 71,647 

Developer deferred revenue 10,033 10,033 

Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds $269,288 $10,033 
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D. Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2016: 

Primary Government 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Balance 
9/30/15 Additions 

Completed 
Retirements 	Construction 

Balance 
9/30/10 

$925,169 6925,189 

Construction in progress 673,282 \ 673,282 

925,169 673,282 1,598,451 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and irnProvements 10,287,004 2,201,060 — 12A88.064 ' 

Machinery and equipment 2,768,928 308,776 — 3,063,704 

Total capital assets being depreciated 13,043,932 2,507,836 15,551,766 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and ImpreVements (1,667,819) (236,141) — (1,903,760) 

Machinery and equipment (2.200,439) (159,012) — (2004051) 

Total accumulated depreciation (3,668,058) (395,753) (4,263,811) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,176,874 2,112,083 11,287,957 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $10,101,043 $2,785,365 $ $12,886A08 
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Bafance 	 Completed 	Balance 
9/30/15 	Additions 	Retirements 	Construction 	9/30/16 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $1,340,132 $ 	— $ 	— $ 	— 51,340,132 

Construction in progress 9,769 241,128 — — 250,897 

Total capital asSets not being depreciated 1,349,901 241,128 1,591,029 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

BuildIngs and improvements 39,551 39,551 

Water and sewer system 20,043,780 3,696,502 — 23,740,262 

Machinery and equipment 537,135 — 537,135 

Total capital assets tieing depreciated 20,820,440 3,696,502 24,310,946 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 

Buildings and imprcwements (34,893) (1,066) — (35,959) 

Water and sewer system (4,160,784).  (547,301) . — (4,708,085) 

Machinery and equipment (458,807) (10,703) - — (469,510) 

Total accumulated depreciation (4,854,484) (559,070) (5,213,554) 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 15,965,962 3,137,432 19,103,394 

Business type activities capital assets, net $17,315,863 $3,378,560 520,894,423 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General govemment $48,115 

Public safety 117,955 

Public works 172,273 

Public sentices 38,303 

Community development 4,813 

Culture and recreation 14294 

Total depreciation ekpense - governmental activities $395,753 

Business-type activities: 

Water and sewer $559,070 
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